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To

A

BOARDS’ REFORT

The Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 11" Annual Report of your Comypany and the

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2021,

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

The following table depicts the financial results of your Company for the year ending 31% March 2021 :-
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S, Particulars For the year ended Fpr the yeax ended
No, 31.03.2021 (Rs) 31.03.2020 (Rs)
1) | INCOME
Income from Operations 75,38,60,692 64,14,92 966
Other Operating Income 1,06,87,381 72,443,312
Other Income 1,26,06,227 10,85,7 83
TOTAL 77,71,54,300 64,98,22,061
2) | EXPENDITURE
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 5,39,72,416 7,27,29,821
Other Operating Expenses 1,15,34,403 71,47,391
Employee Benefits Expenses 1,74,96,915 1,98,25,321
Finance Costs 1,04,94,98 552 99,46,31,449
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 20,60,13,009 17,55,72,756
Other Expenses 6,61,55,825 7,90,20,601
TOTAL 1,40,46,71,120 1,34,89,97 319
3) { PROFIT/{LOSS) BEFORE TAX (62,75,16,821) (69,91,75,258)
Provision for Taxation:
- Current Tax
4) ;| PROFIT / {(LOSS)y AFTER TAX (62,75,16,821) (69,91,75,258)
Less: Prior Period adjustments a
Other Cemprehensive Income
Re-measurements of the defined benefit Plan
Total Other Comprchensive income 2,758 1,77,644
:::?Jdcomprchenswe income for the (62,75,14,603) (69,89,97,614)
PROFIT / (LOSSY AFTER PRIOR
5} | PERIOD ITEMS
;s;:ﬁ Balance brought forward from previous (229,71,69,551) (229,81,71,937)
6 |caper . RRIEDTO BALANCE (362,46,83,614) (229,71,69,551)
Earnings (Loss) per Share — Basic &
penings (Loss) p (12,550.28) (13,979.95)




2. THE YEAR IN RETROSPECT

According to the Concession Agreement, the Company is collecting Toll/User feees from the

Appointed Date ie., 1% September, 2011 from the existing 4-lane road. The Toll Collections during

the construction period, have been Utilized towards the Construction of the Project Highway. The

project has achieved Provisional Completion Certificate (PCC) on 290%™ May, 2015, The Hybrid ETC

lanes have been fully functional in all the Janes of both the Toll Plazas. Effective from Fe bruary 2021,

the Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (Govt of India) has made the usage of FASTag

mandatory for all road users.

“* Intention to Terminate Letter issued by NHAI :

During the Current Year, the NHAI has issued the Intention to terminate letter dated 20" November

2020 cihing the below defaults:

»>

The payment of the Deferred Premium - NHAT has raised demand notices for the payment of
the premium deferred as it has misconstrued FITL as a fresh foan which was interest on Term
loan I and the creation of the DSRA of Rs. 39.20 crs as surplus funds, which were lien marked
funds by Lenders for the remittance of the interest dues to the Lenders. NHAT has cancelled the
premium deferment sanction vide its letter dated 6™ August 2020 and has raised a demand to
remit the entire premium from November 2013 to the date of issuance of the above letter.
Penalty for non completion of the punch list items - NHAI has issued negative Change of
scope (COS) order (2019) after 3 years of issuing the Provisional Completion Certificate (29"
May 2015) and has raised penalties on the non completion of works.

Non-adherence to the Maiatenaunce and safety norms - NHAI has raised counter claims with
respect to the maintenance and safety despite issues. However, NHAI itself got the safety audit
conducted by M/s Rites consultants, and the same was acknowledged by NHAL IE and the RO,
before issuing the Provisional Completion Certificate (PCC).

Non - payment of the Independent Enginecr fees ~ NHAI has raised counter claimg on
account of defaults in the payment of the Independent Engineer fees. However the SPV has
reimbursed the IE fees which is 1% of the TPC of NHAI ie., Rs. 3.25 crs (1% of Rs. 325 crs) as

per the Concession Agreement.
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The value of the counter claims raised by NHAI are amounting to Rs 556.05 Crs (vide letter dated
14" Angust 2020) citing various defaults, few of them are listed above. The cormpany is not
acknowledging and accepting these claims and these claims are illegal, unlawful and ot as per the
agreements signed with NHAL The grounds specified by NHAI are not a valid base for termination.
All the above defaults cited by NHAI in its letter are vehemently denied by the SPV, arid are merely
repetitive and vindictive in nature and have been adequately replied by the company in the past. The

action of NHAT s illegal and unlawful and not as per the terms of the Concession Agreernent,
D Proposal for Amicable Settlement of all Disputes between the Company & NHAI

The Correspondences between the NHAY and the SPV are as below :-.

SPV reply dated 2™ December, 2020 for the Intention to terminate letter dated 20'® November
2020 - The SPV has replied to the NHATI vide its letter dated 2" December, 2020 calling upon NHAI
to restrain itself from taking any coercive steps under the Concession Agreement and that the SPV is
looking forward to the ensuing discussions with the Autherity for resolution of disputes amicably and
in a cordial manner. The SPV also submitted that it is in the process of furnishing a detailed proposal

for the settlement of disputes expeditiously.

NHATJ reply dated 08" December, 2020 - In reply to the SPV letter dated 02.12.2020, the NHAI
has issued a letter dated 8™ December 2020, and has agreed 1o amicably resolve by way of
Conciliation alt  the  disputes including those pending in the Arbitral Proceedings as per the
below terminology:

“Be that as it may, the Authority without prejudice to its right under the Concession Agreement is
agreeable for consideration of your request to amicably resolve by way of conciliation, all disputes
including those pending in the arbitral proceedings for which you are required to submit a

concrete proposal as stated by the SPV in its letter dated 2nd December 2020.”

NHALI has also advised the company to submit a concrete proposal as said by the Company in its
letter dated 2™ December 2020 as per the below terminology:

Depending on the outcome of the setilement of all disputes by way of amicable settlement, if the
outcome is not acceptable to any one of the party, the NHAI may resort to  termination of the
contract. NHAI has given the Company, a period of 10 days time for the submission of a

cancrete proposal for the settlement of the disputes.
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-----

December 2020, seeking time upto 12th January 2021 to submit a concrete proposzal citing the

below:-

“In this connection, you will appreciate that the formulation of such a detailed proprosal is very
complex in nature invelving technical, contractual, and financial issues which also require the
participation of the lenders for the project, for which a consortium meeting is scheduled on
14.12.2020. Based onthe outcome of the consortium meeting we will be in a position to arrive at a
concrete proposal for your Consideration and amicably resolve by way of Conciliation of all disputes

including those pending in Arbitration Proceedings”.

SPV letter dated 7th January 2021 — The company has submitted the detailed proposal for the

Amicable Settlemnent with the below options

(a) First being the Resolution Plan submitted to the Lenders which is pending approval by lenders and

(b} The amicable settlement of all disputes between the NHAI & the SPV and NHAT to muake the

settiement of the payments due to the Lenders for a reasonable amount.

NHAI has requested vide its lir dated 12th Jan 2021 for debt details with the Statutory Auditors
certificate & SPV submitted the information vide its letter dated 15th Jan 2021

INHAI has issued ltr dated 19th March 2021 for stalling of the Arbitration proceedings for amicable

settlement of all disputes through conciliation meetings.

The Arbitrators have issued the Minutes of the Arbitration proceeding dated 7¢h April 2021 stating
the Arbitration proceedings are suspended upto 6™ October, 2021 on account of request by both the

parties for amicable settlement.

NHAI has concurred for the amicable settlement of all disputes between both the parties.
Accordingly NHAT has constituted the Conciliation committee of Independent Experts (CCIE) for
the amicable settlement of all the disputes vide its letter dated 25th May 2021. The SPV has

remitted an amount of Rs 5 lacs to NHAI for the fees towards the conciliation meetings.
** ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS

The SPV has submitted claims to NHAI for an amount of Rs. 1,077 ers on account of Loss of Toll
revenues, cost overruns, delays in the handing over of ROW, EPC claims and other issues. The

Disputes were referred to NHAI as per the Concession Agreement, As per the CA the SPV has

4
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invoked the Dispute Resolution clause. The conciliation meetings at the Chief General Manager &

General Manager of NHAT have failed with the officials of the SPV.

NHAI has called for conciliation meeting between Chairman of the Concessionavire with the
chairman of NHAI on 9" January 2020 to reconcile the claims made by the SPV. However the

discussion did not materialize. Therefore SPV invoked the Arbitration clause.

The Arbitration counsels on both the sides have been appointed. The first hearing was held on 30th
May 2020. This was a preliminary meeting and brief discussion about the project was done. The
tribunal has decided the future  dates and next course of agenda for future hearings. The Minutes of

the 2 at meeting held on 19™ October 2020 for the below items to be discussed:-

Settling the points for determination and issuing directions in the matter of mode and procedure of
trial.

i Appoint dates for recording of evidence, if the parties wish to adduce oral evidence. Ld. Counsel
should be ready with instructions as to number and names of witnesses proposed to be examined
$0 as to enable the requisite dates being appointed for recording evidence.

ii Hear and decide any pending applications calling for directions of the Tribunal.

ifi Such other matters to which the parties may invite attention of the Tribunal.

iv. Appoint fee and expenses of the Members of the Tribunal by reference to Claims and Counter
Claims.

The 3™ AT Meeting was held on 19" Jan 2021 and the contentions of both the parties ie., NHAI & the

concessionaire have been heard by the counsel.

The 4" AT meeting was held on 11" February 2021 and NHAI has submitted counter claims to the

counsel.

The 5™ AT meeting to be held on 10™ Aprl 2021 was cancelled in accordance with the letter issued

by NHATI and has initiated for the amicable settlement of the disputes hetween both the parties vide

its Jtr dated 19" March 2021.

The Arbitration council has issued letter dated 7th April 2021 stating that the Arbitration proceedings

shall remain suspended for a period of 180 days ie., upto 6th Oct 2021 upon the request of the both

the parties for mutual and amicable settlement of all disputes between them.
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> Brief Update on the Operations during the Year

The Company has collected a toll fee of Rs. 75,91,73,474/- (including the Rs. 53,06,820/- which is x
amount of penalty paid to NHAI collected from Non FASTag users) for the period 21 April,
2020 to March 31st, 2021, despite the COVID|9 pandemic and the Lockdown in the enti re nation and
the suspension of toll as per the NHAI guidelines for the period 26™ March 2020 to 20t April 2020.

All the Janes of both the toll plazas have been converted into Hybrid ETC lanes and as per the Govt of
India and the MORTH guidelines. Accordingly it is mandatory that all the Users commurting through
the toll plazas must have the FASTag for the payment of the user fees, otherwise the tol] equivalent to

twice the nommal fare will collected if paid in cash.

Implementation of Mandatory FASTag for all the Vehicles and collection of Penalty from Cash
paying vehicles - Remittance of the excess/Penalty collected from the Users of the NonFASTag
effective 16th February 2021 to NHAT :

(i} A circular was issued by NHAI which states that in accordance with the second proviso of Sub
rule (3) of Rule 6 of the National Highways Fee (Determination of Rates and collection) Rules 2008
all the Non FASTag users entering the FASTag lane have to pay the toll fees at 2x times the normal
rate (x amount). This is in accordance with the decision of the Ministry that all the lanes be made

FASTag lanes effective from 16th February 2021 vide circulars and Letters issued by NITAT as below

(a) MORTH Letter No H-250610/02/2020 - Toll dated 16.02.2021;
(b)  NHAV/13013/547/COR0-21/FAS Tag/65250 dated 03.03.2021;
{®) NHAU/13013/547/C0O/20-21/FA8Tag/65290 dated 08.03,2021.

(i) The excess fees so collected ic., x amount (out of the 2x fees collected - aver and above the
normal fees) should be remitted to the central government in accordance with the sub rule (1) and sub
rule (2) of the rule 7 of the National highways fee (Determination of rates and collection) rules, 2008

and terms of the respective concession agreement (Schedule R of the Concession Agreement),

(iil) Accordingly an amount of Rs. 53,06,820/- being the penalty amount collected (x amount) for the
period 16th February 2021 to 31st March 202] has been remitted to the PIU, NHAI on 5% April

2021 as per the circulars and letters issued.
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The actual average daily revenue for the project in FY 2020-2021 is INR 21.78 Lakhss/day for 346
days as against the estimated INR 51.22 Lakhs/day as per the Original Financial model. However the
average toll collections in the month of March 2021 were approximately Rs. 24 lacs per day, Due to
Lower toll collections the company was and is unable to service the debt and interes t obligations
towards the lenders. The company could not pay the NHAT Deferred Premiunn as per the

deferment terms due to paucity of funds.

Developments to the Adjoining Stretches : Due to the delay in the compl etion of the
Adjoining Stretches the Toll revenue for our project Indore Dewas Tollways Limited is

very low from the beginning

(1} The Stretch of Ghar —~ Dewas was abandoned by the IVRCL. Because of which, the traffic
coming from Abmedabad has abandoned the Indore - Dewas Stretch. Consequently, the toll

collections have reduced and the traffic from the west is cut off consequently resulting in Jow toll .

[2VEenues.

Total length of the project is 155 kms and works of the length of 139 kms have been completed.
The PCOD for the project has been granted in the month of Nov’2018. The 4-lane highway is
open for traffic and tolling is being done. Works in a length of 16 ks is balance due to non-

receipt of clearance from the forest department for the use of forest Jand.

(i) The Stretch of Gwalior — Shivpuri — Dewas Highway was totally dilapidated with no
-maintenance, due to which the entire traffic, which normally passes through Shivapuri — Guna —
Shajapur — Dewas, s now taking the alternate route resuiting in reduced traffic on the Indore —
Dewas Stretch. As NHAI has failed in the execution of the 2-4 laning road from Shivpuri —
Dewas, which was initially awarded to GVK in 2011 and was later cancelled and abandoned by

them. NHATI has later awarded the above works to three Developers on EPC/BOT basis as

mentioned below

1. IRCON Intemnational Pvt ltd — Shivpuri — Guna (EPC) (Km 236 to km 332.10).

2. Dilip Butldeon ltd - Guna - Biaora (BOT) (Km 332.100 to Km
426.100).

3. Oriental Structural Enginecrs Pvt Ltd - Biaora - Dewas (BOT) (Km 426.100 to Km
566.450).
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The status of the above works is as below:-

gi'_ Road section Agency Lc:n.gth Dn‘fg I(i gime Date of issume of PCC

Shivpuri Guna
1 , M/s IRCON 96 kms | 31.03.2015 | 2018 for 83.6 kms *
{Km 236 to km 332.10)

Guna-Biaora )
2 M/s DRI, G3.05 kms | 29.06,2015 201 8

{Km 332.100 to K 426.100)
Biraora-Dewas

3 | (Km426.100 o Km 566.450) | M/s Oriental | 141 kms | 29.06.2015 2019

ud

¥Balanee 12.4 kms (96 kms — 83.6 kns) is basically the stretch of Guna bypass, where the toll operations are being done by

the earlier agency and their concession peripd will be completed in the year 2022, After that the same will be handed over

to IRCON for 4 laning work under phase-11. Post 2022 IRCON has been awarded the work to complete the carringe-way to

4 lane.

Gwalior - Shivpuri Highway

Total project length is 125 kms, out of which 6 kms is forest land, hence 119 is to be constructed.
As of now, total of 119 kms length has been completed. The PCOD for the project has been
granted in the month of Jan’2019. The 4-lane highway is open for traffic and tolling is being done.
Works in a length of 6 kms is balanced due to non-receipt of clearance from the forest department

for the use of forest land.

Although with the completion of the above stretches there scems to be no immediate
substantial increase in the toll revenues which will be sufficient to service the interest and
principal obligations to the Lenders as stipulated in the Restructuring package dated 1%

July, 2014.

> Withdrawal of Premium Deferment Sanction by NHAI

As you are aware, Due to low toll collections and the stress in the account from the beginping, NHAI
has granted the deferment of Premium payable to NHAL in the year 2014 as per the Rangarajan
Committee report. The company has signed the supplementary agreement with NFAI for the
deferment of premium payable to NHAI dated 22 May, 2015 as per the sanction terms vide their
letter NHAI/11033/CGM(FA)/6/2014 dated 11™ June, 2014. As per the sanction terms deferment is
granted from November 2013 to FY 2022 — 2023 with the full deferment being granted for a period of
6 years. However the annual review of the premium deferment is being done every year by NHAIL
After the review of the Annual accounts for the FY 2014-15 & FY 2015-16 & FY 2016-17 NHAI has
served & demand on the SPV for the payment of deferred premium amounting to Rs. 47.48 crs

(excluding interest) for the 3 financial years, g
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The reasons and the details of the claim are as below -

a)

b)

As per the terms of the sanction of the Restructuring proposal dated July 2014, an amount of Rs.
39.20 ers had to be kept with the escrow banker for the purpose of Debt service Reserve account

over a period of 3 years.

The company has created the above reserve with the Lead Bank ie., Union Bank of India, for
which NHAT had an objection and states that the creation of the reserve is ultra-vies the
provisions of the Concession Agreement. The contention of NHAL is that the SPV cannot keep

tfunds in the Reserve account without payment of dues neither to the Lenders nor to NHAI on

account of Premium deferred.

The company’s contention is that, as the asset is a stressed Asset and is not having sufficient cash
flows even to remit the outstanding interest and principal Obligation to the Lenders in the FYs
2014-15; 2015-16 & 2016-17, the lenders have sanctioned the revised/ restructured debt
repayment schedule with a moratorium of 33 months, The reserve of Rs. 39.20 ors (with accrued
interest} can be Utilized only for the payment of debt service obligations towards the Lenders
from April 2017. The company has submitted to NHAI that the company is incurring losses every
year due to low toll collections and is unable to service even the debt obligations to the lenders
regularly, The account is always in SMA2 and hence there is no surplus cash available with the

comparny for the payment of Premium deferred.

However, the Reserve kept in the form of Fixed Deposits with Lenders amounting to Rs. 39.20 crs
were redeemed on 26™ May, 2017 as per the decision of the Lenders in the consortium meeting
dated 19™ May, 2017 and the proceeds were utilised for the payment of the Funded Interest Term
Loan proportionately to all the Lenders and the repayment of Term Loan I in full, so as to reduce
the interest burden on the SPV. The same is permitted as per Clause 22(xxvi) of the

Supplementary Common Rupee Loan Agreement dated 29th June, 2015 which reads as below -

(xxvi) The Borrower hereby agrees that as per the financial mudel prepared for restructuring finalised by MITCON/

Capital Fortune, a deposit reserve of Rs. 10.00 crores for Financial Year ending 2015, Rx.9.50 crores Jor Financial
Year ending 2016 and Rs.19.70 crores for Financial Year ending 2017 shatl be created out of toll collections af the

Project which reserve shall not be kept as deposit and shall be adjusted towards prepayment of Loans on an as and

witen basis in order to reduce the interest Hability of the Borrower for the Project.

The Lead Bank has written various letters to NHAI the latest being vide its letter No

IFB:HYD:216:2019-20 dated 18" September, 2019, and explained about the DSRA and has clarified

that the demand amount is not possible to be remitted as there is stress in the company and the cash

flows are not even sufficient to meet even the Debt service obligations towards the Lenders. The Lead

&
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bank has also taken a legal opinion on the contention of the NHAI stating —“Breach of the terms of
the escrow Agreement dated 29.10.2010”. NHAI has in its raised concerns on the conflict in the
withdrawal between the clause 31.1 of the Concession Agreement and clause 4.1 of the escrow
agreement where in the former agreement the Concession Fee includes the Additional concession
Jee and the later agreement provides that additional concession fee has to be paid only after the debt
service obligations. It is to be noted that the escrow agreement is a tripartite agreement between the
NHAI — Concessionaire and the Escrow banker. The legal opinion states that NHAI contention is

crroneous and the demand is not tenable.

However during the current year, NHAI has cancelled the sanction of the premium deferiment vide its
letter dated 6th August 2020 and has issued notice to the SPV for the payment of the entire premium
due along with Interest from 2014 to the date of issuance of this fetter. However the SPV has protested
the same and the matter is under dispute with NHAI The company could not pay the premium amount

deferred as per the sanction letter dated 1 1% june 2014.

¥ Status of the account with the Lenders

The SPV has availed the COVID19 moratorium for the payment of Interest and Principal dues for the
period March 2020 to August 2020. The company has submitted letter to all the lenders vide letter
dated 18™ May 2020 for availing the moratorium as per RBI Guidelines and circular dated 27" March

2020,

The company bas cleared all the Interest and Principal dues to all the Lenders upto December 2020

and has made partial payments of Interest dues in Term Loan 1 for the month of January 2021.

The account with Punjab National bank has slipped into NPA as on 31 Japuary 2021 and PNB has
issued a recall notice dated 4™ February 2020 and demand has been raised for the remittance of the
entire term loan. [IFCL account  is also NPA as on 31% December 2019 and the same was

communicated by HFCL vide consortium meeting dated 14" December 2020.

The Resolution Plan has been submitted to the lenders to restructure the term loan with Rs. 236 crs as
sustainable debt and balance as Unsustainable debt as per the two RP4 rating issued by Credit rating
agencies ie., CRISL & CARE. The Resolution Plan was prepared based on the Techno Economic
Viability study report (TEV) conducted by M/s Mott Macdonald and the RP4 rating issued by two
credit rating agencies ie., CRISIL & CARE in accordance with the per the RBI circular dated 7" June

2019 for the restructuring of the loans.

1o
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The company has requested all the Lenders vide consortium meeting dated 14" Decexrmber 2020 to
take up the proposal of the Resolution plan with their competent Authorities. The Union bank of
India, lead bank has communicated vide meeting dated 6™ May 2021 that the Resolution Plan

proposal has been not been approved by their competent Authority.

»  Balance EPC works/COS works & Status of the Issuance of the Final Completion

cerfificate :-

aj The Company has achieved 97.37% of Physical propress of work upto March 2017 and the value
of the EPC works completed till now are Rs. 462.99 crs. The Routine Maintenance works are

being carried out by the EPC Contractor as per the terms of the Agreement entered with them.

The SPV has applied for the Issuance of the final completion letter to the PID, PIU, Indore dated
28.5.2018. All the balance punch list items are long completed and further the safety Audit
Committee site visit has also been completed successfully and all other technical tests have been
completed successfully. The NHAT has also issued the letter for the deletion of the pending works

from the scope of works. The issue of the final completion certificate is now under Arbitration.

» Commencement of Major Maintenance Activities due to unprecedented Rains at

the project Site,

As already informed a huge damage was caused to the road due the incessant rains during the months
of June 19 to Sep 19. The damage caused to the highway had to be rectified by commencing the
major maintenance activity immediately. The cost estimate of Rs. 7.11 crs has been worked out (as

per LIE certilication) in-order to commence the repair works immediately,

‘The request has been made for the immediate release of Rs 10 crs for the commencement of the
MMR activities. The SPV has called for a consortium meeting and submitted request to the Lead
bank for the relcase of the above amount. However as the account is already in stress due to
continuing deficit in cash flows even to service the debt obligations, the lenders have agreed to

release an amount of Rs I crs to 1.5 crs per month towards the regular O&M and MMR activities.

The Insurance claims were submitted for an amount of Rs. 3.08 crs out of which an amount of Rs.
1.19 crs has been settled by the Insurance company during the month of Decernber 2020. An amount

of Rs. 2.85 crs has been remitted to the MMR contractor on account of the MMR works done and

bills raised

"
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3. FUTURE QUTLOOK

The Company has attained PCC on 29" May, 2015. We are glad to inform that the to 1l collections

have improved from an average of Rs. 17.53 lacs per day in the previous vear to Rs. 25 lacs per day

during the month of March 2021 despite the pandemic COVID19 and the Lockdown resulting in the

slow economic activity.

Covid-1% has come at a time when Indian economy was already facing slowdown due to the after
effects of demonetization, GST rollout, NBFC erisis and RERA. All eyes were set on riaral gconomy
and uptick in demand thereon. Coupled with Covid 19 impact, the cutrent economic sittration has the
potential to materially impair the purchasing power in the economy and thereby may affect the Toll

collection,

The Toll Collections have to further improve to support the debt obligations to the lenders and

payment of the premium to NHAL

Commencement of Toll collections from 20-04-2020 Post relaxation of the Lockdawn *

Though the toll collections commenced from 20.04.2020 00:00 hrs following the NHAI &
Government instructions, there was a very little traffic crossing our toll booths as the lockdown was
continuing in the country up to 03.05.2020. Due to the strict lockdown and strict restriction on
movement of goods and passenger vehicles, the tol] collection from 20-04-2020 was very meager

until 2" week of May 2020.

This 15 an extraordinary situation and In view of the prevailing COVID-19 situation, and as per
RBI and Ministry of Finance has given instructions to banks on allowing moratorium in

payment of EMIs, and to defer recovery of installment in our Term Loan accounts.

However we observe that the ioll collections have almost reached normalcy after 50 days of

Lockdown. Please find below the table of revenues for the months of April 2020 to March 2021,

Particulars | Toll collections | No of days Average per day (Rs)
Apr-20 11,667,631 11 1,060,694
May-20 50,789,809 31 1,638,381
Jun-20 58,773,705 30 1,959,124
Jul-20 61,932,083 31 1,997,809
Aug-20 65,490,077 3 2,112,612
Sep-20 70,997,448 30 2,366,582 ) 4%,
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Oct-20 75,031,341 31 2,420,366
Nov-20 68,329,984 30 2.277.666
Dec-20 72,383 286 31 2,334,945
Jan-21 71,889,227 31 2,319,007
Feb-21 71,450,664 28 2,551,809
Mar-21 75,124,539 31 2,423372

During the month of April 2021 (from mid month) and May 2021 the toll collections have declined

due to the second wave of COVIDI19 & Lockdown in the city of Indore.

. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Extracts of Annual Return is prepared in Form MGT-9 as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and the same is

enclosed as Anpexure-1.

. BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31% March, 2021, Four Board Meetings were convened and held. The
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,

2013,

The dates on which the Board meetings were held are 18" June, 2020, 23% July, 2020, 03™
November, 2020 and 29" January, 2021.

Attendance of Directors at the meetings:

The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings held during the year ended 31%
March, 2021,

Name of the Director Number of Board Meetings
Held Attended

I. Brij Mohan Reddy
T.V. Sandeep Kumar Reddy

Ch. Harivithal Rag
M.V, Narasimha Rao
Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi

Lol 6 =N I O I A
Lol I <N O I O

Audit Commiitee Meetings

During the year ended 31* March, 2021, Four Audit Commitiee Meetings were convened and held.
The dates on which the Audit Commitiee meetings were held are 18" June, 2020, 23" July, 2020, 03%
November, 2020 and 29" January, 2021.

\%
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Attendance of members at the meetings;
The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31° March, 2021:

Name of the Director Number of Audit
| Committee Meetings
Held Atfended
M.V, Narasimha Rao 4 4
Ch. Harivithal Rao 4 4
J. Brij Mohan Reddy 4 4

Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings
During the year ended 31% March 2021, One NRC Meeting was held on 28" January, 202 1.

Attendance of members at the NRC Committee Meeting: _
The details of the attendance of the Directors at the NRC Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31st March, 2021,

MName of the Director Number of NRC Committee
Meetings
Held Attended
M.V, Narasimmha Rao i 1
Ch. Hanvithal Rao 1 ]
1. Brij Mohan Reddy 1 1

Separate meeting of Independent Directors
One separate meeting of independent directors was held during the year without the presence of non-
independent directors and members of the management to assess the quality, quantity and timelines of

flow of information between the Company Management and the Board.

6. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained
by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the

Companies Act, 2013:

a.  That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31™ March, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material

departures, if any;

14
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b. That such accounting policies were selected and applied them consistently and ju dgement and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fagr view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the

vear ended on that date;

c. That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irrepularitics;

d. That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

. That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate

and were operating effectively.

f. That directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and such system were adequate and operating effectively.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following are the changes in the Directors and ey Managerial Personnel during the period:

a. Mr. Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi was appointed as an Additional Director under the category of
Independent Director with effect from 29.01.2021.

b, Completion of tenure of Directorship of M.V Narasimha Rao as an Independent Director with
effect from 02™ March, 2021.
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted the declaration of independence, as required pursuant to

section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as

provided in sub-section(6).
RE-APPOINTMENTS

Mr. T.V. Sandeep Kumar Reddy, Director of the Company is retiring by rotation and being eligible,

offers himself for re-appointment.
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10. POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AIND THEIR

REMUNERATION
The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee discusses and decides the appoinatment of the

Board of Directors and their remuneration.

The Committee headed by Mr. Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi as 2 Chairman and Mr. J. Brij Mohan

Reddy and Mr. Ch. Harivithal Rao, members of the Committee.

AUDITORS REPORT
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE QUALIFICATIONS IN THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Auditors Qualification

Non Accounting of interest on deferred additional concession fee for the year amaounting to Rs.
25,73,90,290/- has resulted in understatement of loss for the current year by Rs. 25,73, 90,290/ and

understatement of non-current financial liabifities by the same amount.
Interest on Additienal Concession Fees payable to NHAI :

The Statutory Auditor has qualified his Audit Report with regard to INDAS, and has mentioned that a
provision amounting to Rs. 25,73,90,290/- for the Current yeur 2020-2021 & Rs. 90,75,96,033/-
(ctmulative) has not been provided in the Annual Accounts of the Company. The said amount is on

account of Interest on Deferred Additional Concession fees payable to NHAL
Your Company disagrees with the Statutory Auditor’s interpretation and explains the facts as below:

Additional Concession fee has to be paid to National Highways Authority of India ag per clause
26.2.1 of the Concession Agreement dated 17th May, 2010. National Highways Authority of India
has granted deferment of Additional concession fees payable to them vide their sanction letter dated
11th June, 2014. Interest on the Additional concession fees payable to National Highways Authority
of India is not provided in the books of accounts from FYs 2014-2021 as National Highways
Authority of India has deferred the premium payment for the years mentioned as per the sanction
letter dated 11" June 2014. The Interest hability accrues and becomes due as and when there are cash

flows sufficient for the payment.

Due to the current situation of COVID19 and slump in the economy the revenues from the Toll
collections seem bleak and no surplus cash flows are being expected afer debt obligations, so as to

pay the Additional Concession fees to National Highways Authority of India or Interest thereon. In

- 16 -
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view of the total stress in the Funds flow, the management has considered that the liability accrues

and becomes due as and when the cash flows are sufficient for the payment as explained above.

However NHAI has issued 2 letter dated 6% August 2020 cancelling the deferment of premium
sanction and has raised the demand to the company (o pay the entire amount due fromn 2014 with
interest. The SPV has protested the above matter vide its letter dated 14™ August 2020. The matter is
now under amicable settlement with the Conciliation Committee of Independent Experts (CCIE)

constifuted by NHAT
12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related parties entered during the current

Financial Year referred to in Section 188 in the Form AQC ~ 2 are annexed herewith as Annexure-2,

14. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO RESERVES

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to any reserves for the Financial Year ended

31% March, 2021.

15, DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares for the financial year

ended on 31* March, 2021,

16. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There has been no material change and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial

Statements relate and the date of the report.

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

I e A
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18.

19.
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EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is Nil,

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY -

The source of income for your Company is Toll collections which is completely dependent on the
traffic on the highway. There has been a significant decline in the toll collections due to the
detetiorating condition of the adjoining roads to the Indore Dewas Highway as mentionesd in point no
2 above. The development of the adjoining stretches has been completed almost 90% and there

seems to be a steep growth in the traffic averaging to 24 lacs per day in the month of March 2021

Your Company has also ensured that proper systems are planned, implemented and effectively
monitored to ensure that all accounting and financial transactions are properly authorized and

recorded, so as to ensure that the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

The implementation of the Hybrid ETC is fully completed and is functional in alf lanes in both the
toll plazas. As per the MORTH directives the FASTag is mandatory by all the road users and a
penalty equal to doubt the fare (2x amount whete X is the base fare) has to be collected from the road

users having NonFASTag. Due to the implementation of the Electronic toll collections there has

been improvement in the toll collections.

POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR

The policy developed and implemented by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility

initiatives taken during the year is Nil as the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in this

regard are not applicable to the Company.

- 1f -
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BOARD EVALUATION
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried owt an annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of

the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration Committees.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

During the Financial Year ending on 31" March 2021, your Company had no subsidiaries and

associate Companies.

The names of companies which have become or ceased to be Company’s Subsicdiaries, joint

ventures or associate companies during the year;

During the Financial Year, no company is ceased as Company’s Subsidiary, joint venture or
associate company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As the Company does not have any subsidiary or associate companies, hence the Consolidated

Financial Statements are not applicable.

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
OF SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

As the Company does not have any subsidiary or associate companies so the statement containing

salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures is not

applicable,
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25. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

26. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS R COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the

going concern status of the Company and its future operations during the Financial Year 2020-21.

27. STATUTORY AUDITORS

28.

29.

30.

31

M/s. MKPS & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302014E), were appointed
as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 10th Annual General

Meeting until the conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2 025,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees in the Company who are drawing prescribed salary pursuani to Section 197
of the Companies Aet, 2013 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The
details of the Vigil Mechanism Policy are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered

Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has ensured that appropriate policies and procedures are adopted for ensuring orderly
and efficient conduct of the business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, prevention and detection of fraud and eror, the accuracy and completeness of accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

As per Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of Indja (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [*SEBI Regulations”] every listed entity and its

material unlisted subsidiaries incorporated in India shall undertake secretarial audit and shall annex
0 .
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with its annual report, a secretarial audit report, given by a company secretary in practice, in Form

No. MR - 3 as specified under Section 204 of the Act and the rules made thereunder with effect from

the vear ended 31" March, 2021.

Your Company being material unlisted subsidiary of the Listed Company i.e., Gayatri Highways
Limited, has appointed Mr. C.N. Kranthi Kumar, Company Secretary in Practice, a Peer Reviewed
Unit {No. 612 / 2019] as a Secretarial Auditor for the financial year 2020-21 to comaply with the

SEBI Regulations.
32, SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor, does not have any observations /
qualification / reservation / adverse remarks / matters of non-compliances. The report is annexed as

Antexure-3.

33. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is maintaining the Cost Records as specificd by the Central Government under Section

148 of the Act.
34. INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE

The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of constitution of the Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal} Act, 2013.

35. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company lays emphasis on competence and commitment of its human capital recognizing its

pivotal role for organizational growth.

During the year, the Company maintained a record of peaceful employee relations. Your Directors

wish to place on record their appreciation for the commitment shown by the employees throughout

the year.

- Bl
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Annex ure-1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended 31.03.2021
{Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER
DETAILS:

CIN

Li45200TG2010PLC068238

Registration Date

04/05/2010

Name of the Company

INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED

Category / Sub-Calegory of the Company Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non

Government Company

Address of the Registered Office and
contact details

6-3-1090, B-1, TSR Towers, Rajbhavan
Road, Semajiguda, Hyderabad - 500082,
Telangana.

E Mail: ghi@gavatrihighways.com,
Tel: 040-23310330

Whether listed company

Unlisted

Name, address and contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

BIGSHARE SERVICES PVT. LTD.

Registered office: E-3 Ansa Industrial Estatesaki
Vihar Road Sakinaka Mumbai Maharashtra
400072-India

Branch Office: 306, Right Wing, Amrutha Ville,
Opp, Yasodha Hospital, Rajbhavan Road,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500082, Telangana.

E Mail: bsshyd@bigshareonline.com,

Tel: 040- 2337 4967

IL. Principal Business Activities of the Company

All the Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the

Company shall be stated:

SL Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product/ | % to total turnover
No. main products / services service of the company
1 Construction of Roads 42101 100%

HY. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sl | Name and CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
No. | address of the Subsidiary/ | shares Section
Company Associate held
1 | Gayatri Highways | L45100TG2006P1LC052 Holding 66.64 2(46)
Limited 146

2.3
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IV, SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Eguity Share Cagital Breakup as percestape of Total Equity)

i) Catenary-wise Share Hollling

Cittegory of
Sharchalders

Nou of Shitres held at the beginniag of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the yenr

Wa
Change
during
the year

Dremng

TFotal

%% of
total
Shares

PDemnt

Physical

Totat

% of
toead
Shiares

A. Fromoters

{1} Indian

a} Individual / HUF

13

Ly

I5

003

b) Central Giove

003

o) State Govi{y)

d} Bodies Corporate

L6660

49,980

99.96

49,980

9906

¢) Banks / FI

f) Any (ither, .,

Sub-TFotal (AN}

16,675

49,005

49,993

9.9

{2} Foreign

29,99

a) NRis ~ Individuals

i} Other - Individuals

¢} Budiss Corporale

) Banks / F1
&) Agy Other.. ..

Sub-Tobti (AXI):

0

Tatal Sharcholding of
Promaiers (A) =
(ANIHAHT)

45,993

59.99

9%.9%

. Public Sharcholding

{1} Institutions

-1} Mutual Funds /U]

b} Banks / FI

o) Centeal Govi.

) State Gove(s)

&) Venture Capitsl Funds

f) Insurance Companics

&) Flls

h} Foreign Ventune
Capital Funds

i) Ohhers (specily)

Sub-Total (B}

(2} Non-Enstitutiony

a} Bodles Corporate

i} Btedian

i1} Overseas

) {ndividunls

i} Individual
sharcholders holding
nominal share capitat
upto Rs. 1 lakh,

0.0l

0.0t

i1} Individunl
skarcholders
holditg,
nominal share
copital in
excess of Rs 1
1akh

¢} Others
(spacily)

Sub-Total (BX2):

.01

=

.41

Tetzl Public
Shareholding
(B)y=(BH1)HB)(2)

WA{th

0.61

LESE

0.01

(=331

. Shares held by
Custodinn for GDRs &
ADRs

Geand Total (A+B+C)

33,320

16,680

50,000

106

33310

16,680

50,000

194

24
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5. Sharcholders Sharchelding af the beginning of the | Sharehelding at the end of the year % change in
MNa. | Name year sharcholding
No. of Y of Yoot Shares | No. of % of tofal %of Shares | during the
Shares total Pledged / Shares Shares of Piedged / year
Shares of | encumbered the encumbered
the to total company to totai
company | shares shares
Balaji Highways
1 Holding Private 16,660 3332 - 16,660 3332 - -
Limited
o | GwaniHighways 1oy 0 | 6664 100 33,320 66.64 100 ;
Limited
Me. T. V.
3 Sandeep Kumar 5 001 - 5 0.01 - -
Reddy B
Mr. J. Brij Mohan
4 Reddy 3 0.01 - 5 8.41 - “
Mr. T. Rajiv n
3 Reddy 3 6.006 ) - 3 0.006 - -
Ms. T. Indira
) Reddy 2 0.004 - 2 0.004 - -
Total 49,995 59.99 66,64 49,998 50,94 66.64 -
*As per the NCLT order dated 3" November, 2017 of Composite Scheme of Arrangement between
Gayatri Projects Lid, Gayatrl Infra Ventures Ltd and Gayatri Highways Ltd (Formerly Gayatri
Domicile Pvt. Ltd), all the investments held by Gayatri [nfra Ventures Ltd and Gayatrt Projects
Limited has been transferred to Gayatri Highways Ltd.
itf) Change in Promoters’ Sharcholding (Please specify, if there is no change)
s, Sharcholding at the Cumulative ]
No beginning of the year Shareholding during
the year
No. of shares | % of total | No. of % of total
shares of shares shares of
the the
tompany company
At the beginning of the year 49993 99.99
Date wise Increase/Decrease in - - - -
Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity
etc):
At the end of the year 499935 95.99 - -
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ter Sharcholders (Other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl
Nao.

For Each of the Top 10

Sharceholders

Shareholding at the

during the year

Cumulative Sharehol ding

beginning of the year

No. of % of total
shares sharcs of the
company

No. of shares

% of total

compyany

shares of the

At the beginning of the
yoear

5 0.01

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer
/ bonus / sweat equity
ete);

At the End of the year (
or on the date of
separation, if separated
during the year)

1A

0.01

(v) Sharcholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

8L
No.

For Each of the Top
10 Sharcholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Sharcholding
during the year

No. of
shares

%o of total
shares of the
COmpany

Na. of
shares

%% of total
shares of the
COmpany

At the beginning of | 10

the year

0.02

™

Date wise Increase / | -
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increasc
/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer
/ bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the End of the 10

year

0.02

28
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Indebtedness of the Company including interest ountstanding/acerued but not due for

payrment

Rs, in Crores

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebted ryess

Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial
year

1) Principal
Amount

ii) Interest due
but not paid

i11) Interest
acerued but not
due

569.85

19.08

70.25

640.10

19.08

Total (I-+ii+iii)

388.94

70.25

65%.19

Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial year

Addition

8.73

8.73

Reduction

(4.61)

(4.61)

Net Change

4.12

4,12

Indebiedness at
the end of the
financtal year

393.05

293.05

i) Principal
Amount

365.24

70.25

63349

i) Interest due
but not paid

27.81

27.81

iit} Interest
accrued but pot
due

Total (i+ii-+iii)

593.05

70.25

663.30
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VL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

5L | Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Total Amo unt

No. | Remusneration o Manager

1. | Gross Salary - - -

(a) Salary as per provisions - - -
contained in Section 17(1) of
the

Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites under | - - -
Section 17(2) Income Tax
Act, 1961

() Profits in lieu of salary - - -
under Section 17(3) Income
Tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option - - -

3. | Sweat Equity - - - "
4. | Commission - N " N
| as % of profit - - -
others, specify. .. - - -

5. 1 Others, please specify - . .

Total (A} - - -

Celling as per the Act - - -

B. Remuneration to other directors:
1. Independent Directors

SL | Particulars of Name of Total
No. | Remuneration Directors Amount
Mr. Ch. Mr. MLV, Mr,
Harivithal Narasimha Krishnamurthy
Rao Rao Chaturvedi
-Fee for attending Rs. 45,600/- | Rs. 45,000/- | Rs, 5,000/-
Board/Commitiee
Meetings
-Commission - -
- Others, please - -
specify
Total (B)(1) Rs. 45,000/~ | Rs. 45,000/- Rs. 5,000/- 95,000




2. Other Non Executive Directors
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5L
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of
Directors

Total Amount

-Fee for attending
Board/Committee
Meetings

-Commission

- Others, please
specify

Total (B)(2)

Total (B)= (B)(1)+ (B}(2)

Rs. 45,000/-

Rs. 45,000/-

Rs. 5,000/-

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

SI
No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained mn section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in liew of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

L

Stock Option

f

Sweat Equity

#

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify...

Others, please
specify

Total
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VH. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -N.A.-

Type Section of Brief Details of | Authority | Appezil
the Description | Penalty / [RD /| made,
Companies Punishment/ | NCLT if any
Act Compounding | / COURT] | (give
fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - .
Compounding | - - - - .
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - | -
Punishment - - - - -
| Compounding - - -
C. OTHER DFFICLRS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding | - - - - -
S f'\ "ﬁ é

For and on behalf of the Board

ot Qﬂwhﬂ

s ‘r:"“"“ r'““\i"‘

»[Q
7. BRIJ MOHAN REDBY  T.V. SANBEEP KUMAR REDDY
Place: Hyderabad Director Diredtor
Date: 08/06/2021 DIN: 000129 DIN:#0003573
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ANNEXURE-2
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule §(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the compsny with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arms length trapsactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(2) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship \

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts /
arrangements/transactions

() Salient terms of the contracts or axrangenmnts 01

transactions including the value, if any
NIL

(e} Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

{h) Date on which the special resolution was passed }
in general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

- 81




IDTL Anpual Report 2020-21

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of | During the year, no material contracts or
zlationghi .
e nship arrangements have been entered into by the
Company.
{b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions MNIL
() Duration of the CONITACts /| NIL
arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | NIL
transactions including the value, if any:
(¢) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NIL
(£} Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

J. BRI MOHAN
Place: Hyderabad Director
Date: 08" June, 2021 DIN: 00012927

DDY

For and on behalf of the Board

T.V. SANDEEP KUMARREDDY

Director

DIN:00605573
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C.N.KRANTHI KUMAR Cell Phone: +91 -76 7500 11 22

FCS
Company Secretary in Practice E-mail: kranthisarkar369@gmail.com

Form No. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPQRT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2021

A To

@

o The Members

%’) Indore Dewas Tollways Limited,

é’:j 6-3-1090, B-1, TSR Towers, RajBhavan Road,

T Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500082, Telangana.

@ | have conducled the Secretarial Audit for compliance of applicable statutory

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by indore Dewas

1

L Tollways Limited, CIN: U45200TG2010P1.C068238 (herein after called the
i ‘Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
i) reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances
i and expressing my opinion therean.
& Based on my verification of the Indore Dewas Toliways Limited books, papers,
minute books, forms and retums filed and other records maintained by the
g‘{ Company [as provided to me] and also the information provided by the Company,
A its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
N audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
3 covering the financial year ended on 31-03-2021 complied with the statutory
m provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
& processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
?ﬁ subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
(r [ have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
@ other records maintained by Indore Dewas Toliways Limited (the “Company”) for
\ the financial year ended on 31-03-2021, according to the provisions of:

f. The Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’} and the rules made there under;

. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under, and

Hl. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 & Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') [to the extent applicable] to the Company.

Flat No. 402, 4th Floor, Maruti Raghavendra Nilayam, H.No. 1-8-7/3, Page 1 of & ~



| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a)

b)

¢)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of india as
notified from time to time;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Other laws specifically applicable to the Company;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that the provisions of the following are not applicable to the Company:

a)

b)

CN, -
KRANTH! .
 KUMAR

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder fo the extent of Foreign Direct investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securitieal and Exchange Board of india (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

The Securities and Exohaf\ga Board of india (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
Client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations 2009; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The Company was not required to

Page 2 of 6
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appoint Executive Directors on its Board. There were no changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors,

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
iterns before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through, and there were no dissenting members’ views, and
the same are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

P further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that the Company has;

a} No specific events / actions having a major bearihg on the Company's affairs in
pursuance of the above laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.
referred to above.

b) No cases of fraud which are required to be reported pursuant to provisions of
section 143 read with section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under.

Note:

a) This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure
-~ ‘A’ and Notes forming an integral part of this report.

b} Due to the disruptions & situations caused by the giobal pandemic of COVID-19,
the compliance matters stated in this report are to read and construed based on
various special measures, relaxations, clarifications, extensions, schemes, limits,
waivers and fee payments given by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and other statutory authorities for
complying various provisions of the statutes applicabie to the Company.

g

C.N.Kranthi Kumar
Company Secretary in Practice

UDIN: FO09255C000400072 ECS No.9255 CP No.1388%
Unique Code No: 12014TILL1227000

Date: 01-08-2021 Peer Reviewed Unit

Piace: Hyderabad Certificate N0.612/2019

Page 3 of 8
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To

ANNEXLURE -'A’

The Members
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

C.N,

%

KRANTHI
% KUMAR &

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibilty of the management of
Indore Dewas Toliways Limited (the “Company”). My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonabie assurance about the correctriess of the contents of the Secretarial
records with best possible care, reasonable skill and due diligence.

The verification was done on sample / test / random basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and
practices that | have followed [based on guiding principles] has provided a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company,

Where ever required, | have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
imited to the verification of procedures on sample / test / random basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

FPage 4 of &
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NOTES

To
The Members
indore Dewas Tollways Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with the following notes:

1) Format:

The report is presented and submitted pursuant to Regulation 24A of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obiigations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, in Form No. MR-3, the format prescrived under Saction 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

2) Requirement:

The Company being a material unlisted subsidiary [incorporated in India] of the listed
entity - Gayatri Highways Limited, CIN: L45100TG2006PLC052148, the requirernent
to undertake secretarial audit and annex to ifs annual report a secretarial audit report
is mandated as a matter of compliance.

3} Management responsibility:

The management of the Company is responsible for compliances laws, bye-laws,
rules, regulations, circulars, guidelines, notifications, orders and standards as
applicable to the Company, and the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, and the Board operations, adequate systems, processes,
structures and maintaining it.

4) Reporting responsibility:

The responsibility of the Company Secretary in Practice is restricted onlty for
vertfication of procedures of the Company on sample / test / random basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in records.

§) interpretation:

The words or expressions stated in bold, if any, shall bear the same meaning and
context at the relevant paragraphs above, unless otherwise stated.

Page S of &
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' F110, Bhanu Enclave, 1t Floor,
m" IKP S & ASSOCKATES Above Maruti Showroorr,
" (Formerly DASS MAULIK MAHENDRA K AGHAWAL & CO) Erragada, Hyderabad-500 03g.
‘ Tel @ 040-42038614
Mob : OB4915B055, 962457167
E-mail : surgyanmodi 9O8@yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the Members of
INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LINMITED

Report on the audit of the Individual ind A3 Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the Individual Ind AS financial statements of INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS UINITED {"the

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and the Statement of Profit and Lo 55 (Including
other Comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the Individual Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information for the year ended on that date.

in our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid
Standaione Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 inthe manner o0
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles genarally accepted in Indis, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
vear ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Non Accounting of interest on deferred additional concession fee (deferred premium) amounting to Rs.
80,75,90,033/- resulted in understatement of cumulative toss by Rs. 90,75,20,033/- {for the year Rs. 25,73,50,290/-
} and understatement of liabilities by the same amount.

We conducted our audit of Individual Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(5As) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibliities for the Audit of the Individual Ind AS Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Individual Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

qualified opinion.
Ermphasis of Matter

1} We draw attention to note 33 (vi) to accompanying individual Ind AS financial statements, where during
the year, NHA! had issued letter expressing intention to terminate the project and also filed counter claims.
In response to NHAI letter, the company had submitted couple of options for a amicable solution which
were evaluated by NHAI and a Conciliation committee of Independent Experts has been constituted by
NHAI. Since, no termination proceedings had been initiated and pending the ultimate cutcome of these
matters, which is presently unascertainable, no adjustments have been made and the accompanying
financial statements are prepared on going concern basis.

.
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2} We draw attention to note 13{(Hi){v} to accompanying individual !Ind AS financial statemeznts that the
- account has become NPA with Punjab National bank and has issued a recall notice dated 4th February 2020
recalling the entire outstanding loan. As represented by the management atl the Lenders in th e consortium
meeting dated 14th December 2020 agreed to take up the resolution proposal with the ir respective
competent authorities. In view of the above resolution proposal under consideration, borrowi gs from PNB
continues to be accounted as non-current horrowings.

Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters,

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 12(b) in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a
cumulative net loss of Rs. 362,46,83,614 upto March 317, 2021 resulting in negative net-worth of the Company.
These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Lompany’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as stated in NGte 46, it has been represented by the
management that the company’s net worth has eroded primarily due to high amartization , high inte rest on term
loans and high deferred premium liability. The Management expects that the Company's reverue for the
subsequent financial years will be sufficient to meet the expenditure and recoup the losses incurred therehy
strengthening the financiat position of the Company and the company will be able to discharge all its o bligations in
foreseeable future and therefore going concern assumption is appropriate for preparation of financial statements

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information co mprises the
information included in the Anaual Report (but does not include the Individual ind AS financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon)

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the gther information and we do not express any
farm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other informatian is materially inconsistent with the ind AS financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially

misstated,

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Individual Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these tndividual Ind A5 financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate aceounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
palicies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Individual Ind AS
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

QF error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s abilitys to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cor cern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or ha s no realistic
alternative but to do sp,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseging the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibllities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financiai Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as & whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high lavel of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted inv accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or arror and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to imfluence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professiona! skepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
ertar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud miay involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissfons, misrapresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}{i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*+ Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materia uncertainty exists related to events ar conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 3
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 10 the related
disclosures in the financial staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Cormpany to cease to continue as a golng concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 3
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 included in these standalone
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020 which were audited by another auditor, on which they expressed an qualified
opinion vide their report dated June 18, 2020.

Qur opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

fi

g)

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”}, issued by the Central SGovernment
of india In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Campanies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Arnexure A’ a
statement on the matters specifiad in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

As required by Section 143{3)} of the Act, we repart that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensiva income, the statement of
changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid Individual Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Our observations made on the matters stated in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ and ‘Materia! Uncertainty
Relating to Going Concern’ paragraphs above may have a significant effect so as to adversely affect the

functioning of the company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record
by the Board of Diractors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appainted as a
director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effactiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer note 41 to the standalone financial statements;

The Company did not have any fong-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there ware any
material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company,

Al



3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordan ce with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, It our apinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors
during the year,

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014F

’MM
Partner //

M Mo, (51361

UDIN: 21051361 AAAAAMSS39
Place: Hyderabad
Date:08/06/2021
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iil.

vi.

vii,

Annexure ‘A" to the Independent Auditor's Report of INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED for the Year ended as
on 31% March 2021

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqquirements”
of our report on even date:-

i. a.The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details a nd situation

of fixed assets;
b. The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management at regular intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

As the company Is engaged in the business of infrastructure development, operations and its maintenance and
there is no inventory in hand at any point of time, hence paragraph 3{ii} of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liabilities partnership
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence,
reporting under clause {a} to {c) of Para 3{iii} are not applicahie.

The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantee and securities,
which attracts compliance to the provisions of the sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 . Tharefore
the paragraph 3{iv} of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under are

not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1} of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

a. According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of
accounts, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employee state insurance, income tax, Goods service tax, cess and other statutory dues during the year
with the appropriate authorities. As on 31st March 2021, there are no undisputed statutory dues payables for
period exceeding for a period more than six month from the date they become payable.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax Goods service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of

dispute.




vill. The company has taken term loans from various banks and a financial institution. During the year, ®the company

has defaulted in payment of interest on borrowings to the banks & financial institute as per the details given
below .The Company has not taken any loans of borrowings from Government and has not issued anvy debentures

during the year.

Term Loan |
Due Bate Interes.t Principal Ofs | Delays | Interest Ouistanding | Principal Ofs Delays
Outstanding
Banks Financial Institutions
33-Mar-2020 1,30,85,340 56,25,000 366 88,24,935 37,50,000 366
30-Apr-2020 1,27,75,061 - 336 86,50,079 - 335
31-May-2020 1,33,08,534 - 305 90,06,118 - 304
30 Jun-2020 1,28,30,508 75,000,000 275 86,66,125 50,00,000 275
31-4ul-2020 1,34,85,245 - 244 89,35,662 - 244
31-Aug-2020 1,33,28,224 - 213 29,16,262 - 213
30-5ep-2020 - - 183 - - 183
231-Qct-2020 - - 152 - - 152
30-Nov-2020 - - 122 - - 122
31-Dec-2020 - - 91 - 91
31-jan-2021 28,60,020 - G0 - . &0
28-Feh-2021 2,62,26,292 - 32 80,82,353 - 32
31-Mar-2021 3,15,07,899 1,75,00,000 i 1,07,83,473 50,00,000 1
Total 13,04,11,123 3,06,25,000 7,18,65,007 1,37,50,000
Funded Interest Term Loan
Due Date m:?st;r:;:ng Principal Ofs | Delays | Interest Qutstanding Principat Ofs | Delays
- Banks Financial Institutions

31-Mar-2020 37,49,829 a0,76,000 366 24,131,037 &0,50,000 366
30-Apr-2020 36,69,938 - 336 23,59,669 - 336
31-May-2020 38,22,483 - 305 24,58,566 - 305
30-Jun-2020 36,87,810 1,81,52,000 275 23,91,718 1,21,00,000 275
31-Juf-2020 37,90,864 - 244 24,64,762 - 244
31-Aug-2020 37,41,141 - 213 24,31,989 - 213
30-Sep-2020 - - 183 . - 183
31-0ct-2020 - v 152 . - 152
30-Nov-2020 - - 122 - v 122
31-Dec-2020 - - 91 . - a1
3i-dan-2021 59,69,84% - a0 23,63,7186 - 60
28-Feb-2021 76,13,071 - az 21,21,111 - 32
31-Mar-2021 95,23,372 4,23,52,000 1 22,84,760 1,21,00,000 1
Total 4,55,68,358 65,95,80,000 2,12,87,328 3,02,50,000
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Xi.

xii,

xiit.

Xiv,

xv.

xvi,

- Money raised by way of terim loans were applied for the purpose for which it was raised. The Comyoany has not

raised money by way of initial public offer or furthar public offer,

According to the information and explanation given ta us by the management which have been relied by us, there
were no frauds on or by the company noticed or reported during the period under audit.

The company has not paid managerial remuneration, hence paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

The Company Is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause3 {xii} of the Companies {Auditor's Report) O rder 20186 is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of thes Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed In the Standalone ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the fecords of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year,

According to the information and axplanatio'ns given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable,

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

Mod
Partner ™
M No.051361
UDIN: 21051367 AAAAAMBITY
Ptace: Hyderabad
Date;08/06/2021




ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in our Report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of INDORE 2 EWAS
TOLLWAYS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the ind jvidual
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Managerment’s Responsibility for Internal Einancial Controls
The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial controls

based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial staternents criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note or Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note"). These responsibilities include the deslgn, implementation and mainte nance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the pravention and detection of frauds and efrors, the accuracy and completeness of the acco unting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Cornpanies

Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with refere nee to

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance: Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Campanies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable ta
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controts over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such contrals operated effectively in all material

respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtainitg an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The proceduras selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Individual Ind AS financial staternents,
whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a baasis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to firancial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financlal Contrals with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process desigrned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
individual Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally acceptad
accounting principles. A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the tompany; (2} provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Individgat Ind
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that resceipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 3
material effect on the individual Ind AS financlal staternents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial staterments,
inciuding the possibility of coflusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
nternal financial control with reference to financial statements miy become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our apinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2021, i.e The Company did not have
appropriate internal financial controls over accounting of interest on deferred addltional concession fee

(deferred premium),

The inadequate supervisory and review control over Company's process in respect of its aforesaid
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India could potentiafly
result in a material misstatement in preparation and presentation of financial statements including the
profit/ioss after tax, A ‘material weakness’ is g deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
financial controf over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable pussibility that a2 material
misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected

on a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

in our apinion, except for the possible effects of material weaknesses described in “basis for qualified
opinion” paragraph above, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal financial

er " (H'il.'if Bm}
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controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company consideri ng the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Firancial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the rmaterial weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the Mature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on March 31, 2021, and these material weaknesses have affected our o pinion
on the standalone financial statements of the Company and we have issued a qualified opinion ean the
standalone financial staterments,

For MKPS & Assaciates ~

Chartered Accountants AT

RN 302014E /.ﬁ.{}r__._,,__ o
,m ";'ﬂ( RYDERARAD ) %

N

Mo ¥c

Partner — el e

M No.051361 :

UDIN: 2105136 TAAAAAMS939

Place: Hyderabad

Date:08/06/2021




INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED

MNotes to financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2021.;

Corporate Information

M/s Indore Dewas Tollways Limited is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
for execution of the project " Six Laning of Indore-Dewas section of NH 3 from KM 577.550 to
EM 610.00 and KM 0.000 to KM 12.600 (Approx. length 4505 KM) in the state of Madhya
Pradesh uader NHDP Phase-V to be executed as BOT (Toll) project on Design, Build, Finance,
Operate and Transfer "DBFOT" pattern. The company has entered into a Concession A greement
with National Highways Authority of India, which specifies 2 two and half year of corxstruction
period and twenty two and haif years of operation & maintenance period. The Company achieved
the Provisional Completion Certificate w.e.f. 29th May, 2015,

Significant Accounting Policies
2.01  Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with IndAS

The Company's financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepated on a historical cost basis, except for the following

iterns
Items Measurement bagis
Certain Financial Assets and Liabilides Fair Vahie
Fair Value of Plan Assets (if any) less Present Value
Net Defined Benefir (Asset)/Liability of Defined Benefit Obligatons
Assets Held for Sale ' Fair Value less Costs to Sell

{(¢) Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with IndAS recjuires the management
to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of Assets, Liabilities
(including contingent liabilities), Income and Expenses. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results
could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actuzl results and the estimates
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are recogmised in the pedods in which the results are known / materalize. Bstimates in clude the
useful lives of Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Fixed Assets, aflowance for doubtful
debts/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, provisions for ressurfacing

abligations, failr value measurement ete.

(d) Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosuces require the measurement of fair values for both
financial and non-financial assets and Labilttes. Fair value measurerments are cateporized ievto Level
1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair valuc measutements are obsersable aned
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are des cribed as

follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

entity can access at measurement date

* Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
Liability, either directly (as prices) or indixectly (derived from prices); and

* Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable matket data (unobseryable

mnputs).
2,02  Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the
format prescribed in Schedule IH to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Cash Flow
Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requitements of Ind AS 7 “Statement
of Cash Flows”. The disclosute requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way
of notes forming part of accounts along with the other notes required to be disclosed under

the notified Accounting Standards.

2.03 Revenue recognition

The Cotopany has adopted Ind AS 115 “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers ” with
the date of initial application beiﬁg April 1, 2018, Ind AS 115, revenue from contracts with
customers, mandatory for teporting period beginning on or after April 1, 2018 replaced
existing revenue recognition requirements ie Ind AS 18 Revenue Recognition and Tnd AS
11 Construction Contracts. There wete no significant adjustments required to the retained

earnings as on April 1, 2018.

Accordingly, the policy for Revenue is amendeed as undet:

Yy



2.04

The Company denves tevenue primarily from toll collection and other misc wllaneous
construction contracts. Toll colleetions from the wsers of the infrastructuren facility
constructed by the Company under the Service Concession Arrangement is aceotsanted for
based on completion of the performance obligation which largely coincides with s ctual toll
collection from the user. Revenue from sale of smart cards is accounted an rechaxga basgis,
To recognize revenue, the Company applies the following five step approach :-

(1)  Identify the contract with a customer,

(2) Identify the pecformance oblipations in the contract,

(3)  Determine the transaction price,

(4)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract, zand
(3)  Recognize revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract Inception, the Company assesses its promise to transfer services o = customer
to identify separate performance obligations. The Company applies judgment to d.etermine
whether each service promised to a customer are capable of being distinct, and are (Listinet in
the context of the contract, if not, the promised services are combined and accounted as 2
single performance obligation. For performance oblipations whete control is transferred
over time, revenue is recognized by measuting progress towards completion of the
performance. obligation. The selection of the method to measure progress rowards
completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of the services o be proviced. The
method for recognizing revenues and cost depends on the nature of the services renedered,

Toll collections from the users of the infrastracture facility constmcted by the Company
undet the Service Concession Arrangement is accounted for based on completion of the
performance obligation which larpely colocides with actual toll collection from the wser,
Revenue from sale of smart cards is accounted on reéﬁatgt‘: basis, '

Interest income 1is zecognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate.

Fair value gains on current investments cazried at fair value are included in other incorme.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established by the

teporting date.

Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on vittual certainty of receipt bass.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive is established. Other items of
income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises and recovery is certain.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and baok balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked
balances with banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short

sl
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2.06

tertn highly liquid investments being not free from more than insignificant nisk > £ change
are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafis which are past of the

cash management process is included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement Is prepated segregating the cash flows from operating, invcs;ting and
binancing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method.
Under the indirect method, the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects of:

(a) transactions of a non-cash natuse;
(b} any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipis or payments arx.d,
(¢) all other items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash Flows,

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information. Cash and cash equivalents (including bank
balances) are  reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. Those cash amd cash
equivalents which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance S hoet are
also included under this category with a specific disclosure,

Current & Non Current Classification :

Curtent Asset
An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) Tt 1s expected to be realized in, or is intended For sale or consumption in, the
company’s normal operating cycle;

(b}  Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

(¢)  Itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

(d)  Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
All other assets shall be classified as non-curcent.

Current Liabilities:

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a)  itis expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b)  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

() itis due to be sertled within twelve months after the reporting date : or

(d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabiliry

for at least twelve months after the reporting date, Terms of lability that could at
the opton of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of gquity
instruments do not effect its classification. All other labilities shall be classified as
[ON-CULTentt,

sa
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2.08

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and cquipment are stated at historical cost less accumnlated dersreciation
and cumulative impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly ateributable

to acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs ate included in the asset's cauying amount or recognised as & separate
asset, as appropoate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits a ssociated
with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured relia bly. Cost
includes expeaditure that is directly attributable and for qualifying assets, bortowZng costs
capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such prope-xties are
classified to the appropmate categories of property, plant and equipment when coompleted
and ready for intended use.

Depreciation on assets has been provided on Straight line basis at the useful lives specified in
the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions/ dedwetions is
caleulated pro- rata from/ to the month of additions/ deductons.

An irem of property, plant and equipment is detecognised upon disposal. Any gairy or loss
arising on the disposal of an item of property plant and equipment is determinee as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in the statement or profit and loss.

For tansition to IndAS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 01, 2015 (transition date) maeasured
as per  the previous GAAP and use that'carrying value as its deemed cost on the transition

date.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that
the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its rematning useful life.

Intangible assets
&) Rights under Service Concession Arrangements

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that futute economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/ duty credits availed, if any, less
accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment,

b) Toll Projects (Right to charge users)

Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendedng construction services,
represent the right to collect toll tevenue from the users of the public service (road) during
the concession period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT") project undettaken by




the Cotupany. Toll collection rights ate capitalized as intangible assets upon compoletion of
the project at the cumulative construction costs plus the present value of obligatior towards
negative grants and additional concession fee payable to National Highways Authority of
India  ("NHAI")/State authorides, if any, Till the completion of the project, thes same is

recognised under intangible assets under development.

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scope per Concession agreement Cnormally
refecred as "Change of Scope”) is capitalized as intangible asset uader developmexat as and
when incurred. Reimbursement in respect of such amounts from NHAT/State avathorites
are reduced from the carrying amount intangible assets to the extent of actual reczeipts for
Change of scope works done upto the date of capitalization. However post isswuance of
PCC, all the Change of scope works income and expenditure is taken to the Profit and loss

ACCORT,

Extension of concession petiod by the authority in compensation of claims rmade are
capitalised as part of Toll Collection Rights at the dme of admission of the claim  or when
there 15 2 contractual dght to extension at the estimated amount of claims admitted or
computed based on average collecdons whichever is more evident.

Any Visbility Gap Funding (VGF) in the form of equity suppott in connection with project
construction is accounted as a receivable and is adjusted to the extent of actual receipts, The
toll eollections received during the construction period have been adjusted to the
cacraigeways on the date of Capitalization of the Asset.

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expetises that
are directly attributable to the development or acquisition of intangible assets are allocated
and capitalized as part of cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets that are not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are
disclosed as "Intangible assets under development”.

For transition to IndAS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
its Intangible Assets, recognised as of April 01, 2015 (transition date) measured as pet
the previous GAAP and use that catrying value as its deemed cost on the transition  date,

Amortisation of intangible assets

Toll collection rights in respect of road projects are amortized over the period of concession
using the revenue based amortisation method prescribed under Schedule II 1o the
Companies Act, 2013. Under the revenue based method, amortisation is provided based
on proportion of actual revenue eatned tll the end of the year to the total projected revenue
from the intangible asset expected to be carned over the concession pedod. Total projected
revenue is reviewed at the end of each financial year and is adjusted to reflect the changes
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in earlier estimate vis-a-vis the actual revenue earned tll the end of the year s that the
whole of the cost of the intangible asset i5 amortised over the concession period.

For transigon(01/04/2016) to IndAS, the Company has availed the option(under goara D22
of Ind As 101) to continue with the Revenue based amortisation method prescrib ed under
Schedule II to the Cormpanies Act, 2013 for tolf collection rights recopnised unde~y service
concession arrangements recognised for the petiod ending immediately before the Iaeginning
of the fitst IndAS reporting period(i.c. 31/03/2017) as per the previous Indian GAAP,

Barrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest ealculated using the effective interest method, ameortisation
of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences anising from foreign  currency
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.  Costs in
connecton with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the ac quisition
of qualifying assets are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the
tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for acquisiion, constnaction or
production of qualifying assets, pertaining to the perod from commencernent of
activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset up to the date
of capitalization of such asset ate added to the cost of the  assets. Capitalization  of
borrowing costs is suspended and chatged to the Seatement of Profit and Loss during
extended pertods when active development activity on  the qualifying assets is

mterrupted.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year as adjusted for
dividend, intesest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes)
telating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of  equiry
shares considered for deriving basic  earnings per share and the weighted average number
of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares aze deemed  to be dilutive only if their
conaversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit pet share  from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shates are deemed to be converted as at
the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at 2 later date. The dilutive
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value (Le. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential
equity shates ate determined independently for cach period presented. The number of
equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shates are adjusted for share splits / reverse
share splits and bonus shares, a3 appropriate.

<
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Income taxes

The incomme tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on current year”s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax  assers
and labilities atwributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Thes current
income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively- enacted
at the end of the reporting petiod. Management periodically evaluates, positio ns taken
In tex returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject  to
intetpretation and provisions are established whete appropriate on the Toasis of
amnaounts expected to be paid to the tax authordties.

Minimutn Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which givess future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax lability, is consiadered as
an asset if there is convincing cvidence that the entity will pay normal income tax.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset when it is highly probuble that future
economic benefit associated  with it will flow to the entity,

Deferred income tax. is provided in full, on temporary differences arising betweena the tax
bases of assets zind liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial siatements. Fowever
deferred income tax is not accounted if ir arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability that at the tme of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nox taxable
profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset/liability is realised or settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deduetible temporary differences and unused rax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utlise these

tempozraty differences and losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit ot loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity wherein the related
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed
for impairment if any indication of impairment exists. The following intangible assers are
tested for impairment each financial year even if there is no indication that the asset is

impaired:
(4} an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and

(b) an intangible asset that is amortized over a period exceeding ten yeats from the  date
when the asset is available for use.
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If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is
recognised for such excess amount. The impaisrnent loss Is recognised as an experase in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case
atty impairment loss of the revahied asset is treated a3 a revaluation decrease to thes extent a

revaluation reserve is available for that asset

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and itss value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to theit ptesent
value wsing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimated future cash fows

have not been adjusted.

When thete is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a
revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such
reversal of inpairment loss 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to thie extent
the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued

assets such reversalls not recognised.
Provisicns, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligmation (legal ot cons tructive)
as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligaton in respect of which 2 reliable estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as 2 provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting petiod, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle 2 provision are expected to be
recovered from = third party, a teceivable is recognsied as an asset if it is virtually certain that
the reitnbutsement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be rmeasured

reliably.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past
events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation or a present obligation arising from past events, when no seliable estimate is
possible. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an in flow of

econommic benefits are probable.
Hinancial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate tecognised when the Company becormes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial Habilities are




inttially measuted at faiv value. Transaction costs that are directly artribntable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial linbiliies (other than financ=ial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted  from

the fair value of the financial assets ot financial Habilitics, as approptiate, on injtial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisiion of financial agsets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit ot loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
Financial Agsets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at vither amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financia] assets

Investments in debt mstrurnents that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amoctised cost (unless the same are designated as fair value through profit or

loss (FVTPL)):

# The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

# The contractual terms of instrument pive tise on specified dates to cash fows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstarading.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions ate subsequently measured at £air value
through other comprehensive income (unless the same are designated as fair vahue through

profit or loss)

¥ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assers; and

¥ The conteactual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash Aows thar
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt Instruments at FVIPL is 2 residual category for debt instruments and all changes ate

recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments ate classified as FVIPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on inttal recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI for Bquity
insteurments which are not held for trading.

Interest income, dividend income and exchange difference (on debt insttument) on
FYTOCI debt instruments is recognised in profit or loss and other changes in fair value age
recogrised in OCI and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of debt instruments
FVTOCI the cunmmlative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity Is
reclassified to profit & loss. However in case of equity instruments at FYTOCI
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit & foss on  disposal of investments.
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b)

Finanecial Liabilities

Financial habilities are classified at inital recognition, as financial habilites as Eair valie
through profit ot loss, loans and bomowings, payables, or as derivatives desigenated as
hedging instruments  In an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial Habilities are
recognised nitially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, et
of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings ate subsequently measuted at amortised costs vsing Effective Interest

Rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL) ate subsequently me msured at

Fair value.

Financial guarantee contracts are subsequently measused at the higher of the amourat of logs
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount

recognised Jess cumulative amortisation.

Financial liability is derecognised when the oblipation under the liability 15 discharged or

cancelled or expires.
Impairment of financial assets (Expected Credit Loss Model)

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impaitment loss on
financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCT, leage
receivables, trade receivaldes, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial

asset and financial guarantees not designated at FVTPL

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective tisks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash
fHows that are due to the Company in accordance with the coptract/agreement and all the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls), discounted  at  the
original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, through the expected life of the financial

instosment.

The Company measutes the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the life-time expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instratnent has increase
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit dsk has not increased significantly, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses
and represent the life-time cash shortfalls that will result if the default occurs within 12
months after the reporting date and thus, ate not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the

next 12 months.




2.15

2.16

2.17

When making the assessment of whether there has been 2 significant increase in caredit risk
since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the sk of a default ocCurEing over
the expected life of the financial instrament instead of a change in the amouryt of the
expected credit loss. To achieve that, the Company compares the sisk of a default Oecurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a defauls Ceccurring
on initial recogniton and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases [An credit

risk since inidal recognition,
Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be
admitted and  to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured rebably and it is

reasonable to expect  ultimate collection.

Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under comtingent
liabilities. Claims made by the compauy are recognised as and when the same is
approved by the respective authosities with whom the claim is lodged.

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilides for contractual expenditure. Commitinents are classified
and disclosed as follows:

(1) Estimated amouat of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for
(if) Uncalled Lability on shares and other investments partly paid

(ii)  Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies

and

(iv)  Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered
material and relevant in the opinion of management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business
ate not disclosed to avoid excessive details.

&0



2.18  Employee Benefit

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, employee state Ensurance
scheme, gratoity fund, compensated nbsences, long service awards and post-empoloyment

medical benefits.

Provisions for/contributions to retitement benefit schemes are made as follow as pet Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) — 19, “FEmployee Renefits:

a) Provident fund on actual lability basis
b} Geatity based on actuaral valuation
<) The company is not haviog the policy of Leave encashment benefit to its employe eg

and hence there is no provision.

For and on behalfl of the BBoard

As per our report atiached
For MEKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 302014E

s >~z\]\'§m/

Parmer
Membership Ne. 051361

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 8 fune 2021

VO 210571 24[4AARAMS 939

J Brij Mohan Reddy

Director
DIN No 00012
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INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED

Balanie Shect as at Masely 3z, 2021
{All amaunts in Tunless othenwise suaigd)

Pacticulars Notes As oat As at March
March 3y, 2021 Jlse, 2020

ASSETS
Non-curtent Assets
Propery, plant 2ad equipasnt 3 9,57,018 12,33,889
Capital work.in-progress
Invesiment Propecty 5 3,085,910 308,910
Inmangtble ageers
(&) wnder SCA 4 7,76,58,78,458 7.97,16,15,496
(ii} others
Other Not-Current Assets 1 7,718,197 7,78,197
Total Mon-cuccent Asacts N16,79,23 483 7.97,59.36,492
Current Assers
Financial assets
(i) Cash and Cash equivaleaes 7 1,52,13,474 84,206,228
(1) Cicher Bank Balance 7 - -
(i} Other Finnncial Assets L3 10,88,233 10,980,591
Tax agyors
Cureent tax assets (Neg g 17,582,799 T7,48,820
Orher Coyeant Assats 10 202,67 088 20,828
Toral Curcent Assets 3,835,194 1.99,36,467
Tot Asscts  1B062,73 877 7,99,39,77.950
EQUITY AND LYABILITIES
Equity
Figuity share capitad 11 5.00,000 5,00,000
Instrument entrely Heuity in Nahtee 12 70,25,00,000 70,25,00,000
Other Heuiry 12 (3,62,46,83,074) (2,99,71,69,551)
Tatal Byuiy (2,92,16,83,614) {2,29,41,69,551)
LIABILITIES
Mon-cuerens Liabilitics
Finnneinl Liabilitiog
(i) Loagteom borrowings 13 5,07,25,50,469 5,37,95,70,048
(DO ehar fnancal Habiliries 14 4,74,71,31,961 #,30,86,19,194
Provisions 15 2299459 19,76,700
Total Moo-current Liabilitdes 9,82,17,82 039 6,649.01,65 948
Current liabiliges
Finaoeial labiities
Orcher fingncial Habilifes 16 90,42,94,042 59,43,47,221
Provitions 17 3,01,913 9,08,053
Other cugeont habtlites 18 15,81,234 25,81,289
Toral Current Linbilities 90,61,77,201 54,7%9,26,563
Total Liabilitiss 10,72,79,59,290 10,28,50,92 510
Total Equity and Liabititics 7,80,62,75 677 7,99,59,22 059

The aceompanying notes form an integrul pae of the Ananciat scarementy,
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our cepaort of even date,
Fot and on behall of the Board

For MEPS 8 Associates
Chartered Accountunts
Firm's vegistration no. 3020145

s Modi
IMartnes
Muno : 051361
Place: Hyderabad
Drate: 8ch June 2021

Uy 2105 13GAAARAMS § 39
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INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period ended 31st March 2021

(Al xmounts in Tunless athorwise stated)

Particulars Note P'or the Year ended | For the Year emie;
! ¢ PES Mareh 315t 2021 Mareh 31, 24020
Revenue rom Operations 19 75,58,60,692 G4,14,%92 946
Other Operating [rcome 20 1,00,87,381 12,413,312
{Oither Income 21 1,26,06,227 10,535,783
Total Income 77,71,54,300 64,928,222 061
Hxpcenses
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 22 539,72,416 727,229,821
Orther Opecating Bxpenses 22 1,15,34,403 71,517,391
Employee Benelivs Expenaes A 1,74.96,915 198,225,321
Finance Cosrs 24 1,04,94,98 552 99,46,3 1,449
Depreciadon and Amortisation Expenges 25 20,60,13,009 17,53,772,736
Cither Expenses 26 6,61,75,825 7,900,601
Total expenses 1,40,46,71,120 1,34,89,97 310
Profic before sxceptional iterns and tax (62,75,16,821) (69,91,7 5,258)
Add: Exceptional items
Profic before wax (62,75,16,821) (6%,91,7 5,258)
Less: Tax expense
{1) Current tax
(2} MAT credit entitlernent
(2} Deferted ox
Profit for the pegod (62,75,16,821) {69,917 5,258)
Other Comprehensive Income
Remessuremnents of the defined bencfit plans 2,758 1,77 644
Total other eomnprehensive income 2,758 1,777,644
Total compeehensive income for the period (62,73,14,063) (69,89,97,614)
Earnings per share (Face Value T10/- pex share)
(1) Basic ind.) 40 (12,550.28) (13,979.95)
{2} Dituted (in T.) 40 (12,550.28) (13,979.95)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Anancial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss ceferred to in our report of even date,
For and on behalf of the Board

For MEPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Pirm's registeation no. 302014E

Partner

Mno : 051361
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 8th June 2021

UDIN: 2 los T 261 AARAMST 3]

Direcior

PIN Mo G0
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INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMI'TED
Stateraent of Changes in Equity
(Adl aroiesty in ¥ wnless otteerwive stazed)

A, Share Capiral:

4. Equity share capiral
Movement dudag the period For the Year ended March 3dae, 2028 th;;?;:’;:r;];gcd ’
Parriculats Number of shures Stiave eapltal MNumber of shares Share caplal
{Amnunt) {Asmount)

Shaces having Lace valug of ¥ 10/-

Bulunee at the seart of the pedod 5,000 500,000 506,000 5,00,000

Issued during the period

Balanue at the end of the peded 30,000 5.00,000 20,000 5,00,000

8. Othee Equity
1. Tmstoumentis entively equity in Namre

Balance et cthe Chaages in the neher Bal i dafth
Particulars Beplaning of tho Eguity dusrltyp thy " :;:u ﬁ:.‘ m;“ .;‘ the
Reprcting Period Yoar spocting Pen
Loan from Promaters 70,25,00,000 - 70,25,00,000
Trotal 10,25,.00,000 - F0,25,00,000

b, Other Equity {Previous Year ; FY 2019-2020)

Reserves and Surplus

Pasticulars Secudlt:cs Premriuim Retained Earings Foral
rrerve

Balance at the epinaing of the reporting peded
Le (1.04.2019 . (2.29,81,70,957) (2,20,81,78.951)
Changes in aresunting policy or price peedod
rzears - - -
Reustated balance ac dae beginulag of the,
vepocdag perod ' . (2,29,81,71,937 (220.81,71,937)
Toual Coraprthensive fncome for che yesc {69,89,97614) (698997614

Crvidencs

‘Teansfoe o Retined Enmings

Any other change (1o be specified)

Balznce t the ead of the repocting period -
. 9,71 71,6

Lo 3105 2000 (2,99,71,69,551) {2,99,71,6%,331)

Other Equiry { FY 2020-2021)

Begerves and Surplus

Particulaes Secudtes Premium . . Tatal
Retained Enmmgs
Regerve

Balanee st the heginning of the eepocting pedad
Le. 102020 . {2.99,71,69,551) {2.99,71,69,551)
Changes in seeaunting policy or priot petind
crrord -
Restamd balanes at the beginning of the
seporting perind - (2,99,71,69551) (Z99.71,69,550)
Tu} Compzehensive Tneome for the year {62,75,14,003) {62,75,14.063)
Drividendy

Tracesfer 1o Remined Earaing:
Any pther change {to be spedfied)
:3:1;:‘;2‘;0‘;“ =nd of the eopordng perod . (3,62.46.,83,614)] (3.62,96,83,614)

The sccompanying fowes Barm an integeat pert of the finandal smtements,

This is the Fratemeat of Changes in Equity Capital seferted tm in oue report of event dats.

For MEPS & Ascociates For and on behsil of the Board
Chanersd Ascountanty
Firm's tegisuation no. 3020145

™

-
Modi

Partner

Dlowes £ 01513461
Place: Hyderbact
Digte: 3ikt June 2021

Lo 2051 361 ARAAAMS 2 G

Diteeror
DN Mo QXK5573

¢4



INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the Year conded 31at March 2021

(AN amounts in T unless othervise stared)

5. MNao. Purticularg As at As at
March 3151, 2021 | March 3lst, 20220
A [Neeprofic / (loss) before tax and extraordinary itoms {62,75,14,063) (.69,89,97,51@
Adjustment for
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 20,60,13,009 17,55,72,7 36
[nterest expense 1,04,94 95,532 o0.46,31 2549
Tnterest income R _
Proceeds from redemption of FDRs - -
Opecating profit before waorking capital changes 62,79,92,409 47,12,06,5 91
Adjustmenty for:
Inczease / (Decrease) in Long Teom Provisioas 3,22,953 2,66,5 Q6
Inceease / (Decreasc) in Other Current Financish Labilitites (#,24,00,897) 519,548 56
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Cnereng Fiabilites (10,00,053) 5,583,227
Incgease / (Decreasc) in Short Term Provisions (6,946,140 (4,307
{Incrense) / Decrease in Other Noa-Current Assets - -
{Frceease} / Decosase in other financial asset 2,358 {28,278
(Tnceease) £ Decrease in other cucrent assets (1,75,46,860) 4291061
Met eash gengrated from/ (used in) operating zetivities 56,66,78,860 52,75,39,6 41
Diireer taxes paid (net of refunds) 59,66,021° G1,92,023
MHet Cash{used in)/gencrated from Operating Activities §7,26,44,881 53,373,654
B |Cash flow feorm investing activities
TPurehase of foned assets - -
Net cash (used in)/ generated from invesing activitics - -
C  [Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long term borowings (16,58,36,57%) (5.03,11,66%9)
Proceeds/ repayment from/of Letier of Credit
Interest paid (#40,00,21,056) {49,17,10.261)
Net cash (used in)/penceated from fnancing activities (56,58,57,635) (54,20,21,9571)
gic: }xlx:f:(rgum. / (deceease) in cash and cash equivalents §7,87,246 (82,90,267)
Caush and cash equivalents ag st the beginning of the year 84,26,278 1L67,16,495
Cash and cash equivalents gy af the end of the year 1,52,13,474 84,26,228
1,52,13,474 84,?,6,22&!_‘
MNotes:

1. Cash flow statement has been peepared under the ‘Indiceer Method' a3 set out in the Ind AS ¥ - Cash Flow stapeaients

2 Cash and cash equivalents repeesen eask and bank balances,

3. Previous year's figures have been cegrouped/reclassified wherevee applicabie,
For MEKPS 8 Associates
Chzriered Accountunts

For and on behalf of the Board

Fuum's registraton no, 3020145

Py

S'Modi

Pacines Dhirecter

Man: 031361 DN No 00012937 DTN No (8005573
Place: Hyderabmd

Date: Bilr June 2021
VDI 4061 36 IAMAAHE I3
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INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED

Motes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021

(All amounts o T unless otherwise stated)

&5 Tavestment Property

Particulars As at As at
March 3isr, 2021 Mareh 31st, 2020
Land 3,08,910 308910
Total 508,910 3,08,910 ¥

The Management estimate fair Valoe of the Land as at the Balance Sheer date is Re.3,08,910/-

"The Best evidence of fair value is current prices in an setive market for similar properties. Where sucky
information is not available, the Company consider information from a vadety of souces including:

a) Current prices in ag active market for properties of different namre or recent prices of similae
properties in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those differences.

b) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows.
c) Capitalised jocome projections based upon a propery’s estimated net market income, and o
capitalisation rate derived from. an analysis of marker evidence.
The fair values of investment properties have been determined by management. The mais inputs useck
aze the remtal growth rates, expected vacaney rates, terminal yields aad discount rates based om.
comparable transactions aad industry data. AR resulting faic value estimates for investment properties

are included in level 3.

6 (Other Non Curgent Assets

Particulars As at As at
March 3151, 2021 | March 3st, 2020
Long term loans and advances(Unsecured,
consitdered good)
Secunty Deposits 5,56,197 5,56,197
Rent Advance 22000 22,000
Advance for Toll Collection Management 200,000 2,00,000
Total 7,78,197 7,78,197 |
7 Cashand Cash Equivalents
Particulars As st As at
March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
Balance with Banoks
In Current Accounts 1,4951 411 83,602,484
Cash on Hand 2,62.063 63,744
Tortal 1,52,13,474 B84,26,228
8 Other Financial Asset
Particulars As at As at
March 51st, 2021 | March 31st, 2020
ETC O8:M Receivable From NHAT 10,88,233 10,920,591
"Fotal 10,88,233 10,90,591

r1



INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED

MNotes to Financial 3tatements for the Year ended 3ist March 2021

(All smeunts in ¥ unless othenvise stated)

9 Current Tax Asset (Net)

Particulars As at As at
March 315, 2021 | March 31st, 2020
Current tax Asset ]
Receivable from Statutory Authorities 17,82,799 77,48,820
. Total 17,82,799 77,48,820 |
10 Other Current Assers
Particnlars As at As at
Mareh 3lsr, 2021 March 31sar, 2020
Mobilization advance - COS & Utility shifting paid to ]
GPL , 0,93,584 9,93 584
Hybsid ETC - NHAT Reeeipts Afc 1,52,18,348 .
G5T Iapot and Output Credit 1,93,657 -
Prepaid Expenses 38,728,009 16,593,244
Others 34,000 34,000
Total 2,02,67,688 27,20,828 |

@
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INTIORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMI'TED
Motes to Financial Statements for the Year caded 351 March 2021

(Ali umqunts in ¥ unbess ovherwise atated)

Eguity Share Capital
Pasticalars Ag at Agat
March 31st, 2028 | March 315t 2020
Mote: 1 SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED:
Equity Shares of £.10/- cach 1,00,00,000 1,000,000
1,06,00,000 1,00,00,000
ISSUED, SBSCRIBED & PAID UP:
Feuity Shaees of Rs, 10 cach 5,00,000 * 5,00,000
Total 500,000 4,00,000

Froge Notes:
i) Reconcilintion of the pumber of shares gutstandiog at the beginning and for dhe pedod ended 31 March 2021

Equity Share

. As at March 31sc, 2021 Ag at Murch s, 2020

Particulazz
Mumber Asipunt in Rs Numbet {Amount in Be

Number of equity shares at the beginaing of the
Year 30006 500,000 50000 500,000
Frepiey shares issued during the year
Lss ; Shares bought back du.:ing the year
Number of equity shaces at the end of the Year 50000 5,00,000 50000 5,00,000

ity Terma and rghiea attached to equity shares

The company has enly one class of shaces referred to a3 equity shares having a pac value of 710 per shave. Fach holder of
equiry shates is entithed o one vowe per shars. The dghts and preferences of sach sharebolder are in wecordzace with the

Sharcholdecs’ Agreement.

"The Compaay declares and pays dividends in Indise rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directocs is subjecr to
the approval of the shareholders in the cnsuing anmal general meeting. During the year ended 315t Macch 2021, ao
dividend is declared by Board of Diteceses, (Previous yeas - Mil)

In the event of liquidation of the Compuaay, the holdecs of equity shases will be entitled o weonive tetnaining assets of the
cornpany, after diswibution of alt preferential amounts In the proporion to the number of cquity shaces held by the

sheeholders,

iii) Equity shares held by holding company and the Ultimate holding company aud or their subsidiaries/

associates - Nij

Qe of the equity shares issued by the Company, stires held by its holding compaay, ulimate holdin company znd theie

subsidiades fassoctates are as belows

Az ai March 31st, 2021 " As ot 315t March 2020
Purticulars . \ No. of shares % af Mo, of
% of Halding held Holding | shares held
M/s Gayatd Flighways Limited (G6.04% 33,320 60,045 33,3520
M /5 Balaji Highways Folding Pt Limited 33.32% 16,660 |  33.32% 16,660

iv) Detaile of sharehaolders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As ut March 3lst, 2021 Az ac ¥ar Muarch 2020
Name of the Shareholder MNo. of shares % of Holdi No. of Yo of

held v al Rolding shares held | Holding
M /s Gayarcd Highways Limited 35320 66,64 13,320 6661
M/s Balajt Flishways Holding Pvt Lirnired 16,660 3332 16,660 33,32

a9
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INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED
Motes 10 Finuncial Statements for the Yeur ended 31se March 20221

{All amounts is T unless otherwise stated)

As pet the Composite Scheme of Mergee & Demerger the benefical ownesship of shaces has beso tansfeerd o Grayatri
Highways Limited a5 per the National Compaay Law “Fribunal (NCLT) order dated 3ed November, 2007, however as on
31st Macch 2021, the shares of Gaystel Infra Ventwees Limited and Gagatd Projects Lid are get to be teansfeveed in the
nasme of Cayaeri Highways Led (in deniat foem). The trensfer wiil be complered after receiving the Mo Objecion Cerificate
MNOC) addressed w the secucdty treseee from all the Lenders for the Relense & Repledpe of shares. All the lendess have
izsued NOC but the wuster bas requested foe the email confiomaton from ol the consortum of hanks that the NOCs
issued in 2018, 2019 are still valid. As on 31st Maech 2021, ol the Landers have given the confrimation by way of email to
the Secerity Trustee on the validity of the NOCs issued by them excepe Punjab National Bank.

2) Ingtrument enticely Equity in nature »
Particulacz As at As at
o March 31st, 2021 | March 31st, 2020
Loans Bom Promotess 70,23,00,000 1,28,00,000
Tatal 70,25,00,0G0 70,25 00,000
b) Other Equity
Particulars Asat As a¢
March 31st, 2028 | Macch 3ise, 2020
Surplus in profic and loss secount {3,62,46,83,614) {2,99,71,69,550)
Tatal £3,62,46,83,614) (2,09,71,60,350)
Particules As at March 315t Ag at
’ : 2021 Macch 31at, 2020
Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at Beginning of the peded {2,99,71,69,3551) {2,29,81,71,937)
Net profit for the period / year (62,75,14,00%) (69,89,97.614)
Other Compechensive Incomes / {Expenss) -
Reserves -
Transfer po Capitd Redemption Reserves -
Balance at end of the peroed {3.62,46,83,644) (2,99,71,69,551)}
Long - Term Borrowings
As ac As ar

Particut
actioulass March 31st, 2021 § March 3isc, 2020

Teon Loans
a. Secured
Todian Rupec Term Loansg

from Baoks - TL -1 335,99,70,139 3,37,65,26,029
feom Hinaneis! Instamdons 92,97,75,000 206,47 ,75,000
Indian Rupee - Funded Interest on Term Loans

frotm Baoks - FITL 63,09,17,937 82,30,56,626
from Finaneis! Instmons - FITL 15,16,87,393 21,52,12,393
Total of Secured Term Loans §,07,23,50,469 5,37,05,10,048
Taral of Long teom borrawings 5,07,23,50.469 5,371,95, 70,048

(1) Extension of Moratorium for Tenm loans - COVIDI9 Pandemic & RBI Circular daved Z7th March 2020,

Due to the COVID-19 pandernic aod the declining economic scenario, the Reserve Badk of India alang with the Ministey
of Finaace have issued circulas aad guidelines to all the Banks for allowing mosmtodus io payment of EMls, and to defee
ezcoveny of installments in all loan accounts from March 2020 to August 2020 . Accordingly the company has submirted a
request letter clated 18th May 2020 to alt the Lenders secking for the morotodum for the payenent of Debt dues from
Mareh 2020 1o August 2020 in accordance with the RBI Covid19 Regulatory packape dated 27th Mareh 2020, However
PINB & IIFCL bave communicated vide $4th Detember 2020 consortium mesting that the morototiusm a8 per the cireulas
cannot be availed with sespect to the loans disbursed by them as the account has become NPA as on 315t Januacy 2020
(PINB) & [HHCL (315t December 2019).
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Aceosdingly the curent maturities with cespest w0 the Principal repayment of the Torar lown [ and Faoded [nierest Term
loan hive bee updated as per the COVID momatorium granted by RBI vide its cicculac dated 27th March 2070, As on 3st
Muarch 2021 the Moratoduen has been effected for the Union bank of [ndin & State Bank of India ag per the
communications received from sheds. Accordingly the Interest dues for the period March 2020 to August 2020 for Union
Bank of [adis & Sute bank of Indix have been transfecred 1w the Outseanding Principal dues as the same is payable ac the
end of the Repayment sehedule and loua tentare,

{11} Terms of Repayment - Restructuring Package approved by the Leaders dated st July 2014
Secured Loang:
a) Temns of the Restructuring Package:

1) The Restrucauing package is approved with 2 cut off dare of July 01, 2014,
23 Reduction in Interest mies on afl Teom Loan fcilitiees (Ferm Loas -1 ¥ 450,00,00,000, Funded Entecest Term  Loan
T136,18,58,057 & Tern Loan -II F 40,00,00,000 ) to 11% fied pa. upto YT 246-17, whick i to be linked to the Base

Rate of the Lead Lender.
3 The Interest oo Term Loan fiar 11 quarters from cucoff date fe, July 1, 2014 to Macch 31, 2007 is to be funded through

Funded Tnterest Term Loan (¥136,18,58 057 ).
4) Moratodum of 2 years 9 months for the repayment of Tean Loan - T & Funded Intecest Term Lopa froum 1st July 2014
ter 31se March 2017
b) Secuwrity for Term Loans:
Terny Loans from lenders are secuced by
() All monies including Tolt collected on the Peoject Highway to the credit of the Escrow Account as pee the provisions
of the Concession Agrecment.
() Al the Bocrower's Properties and Assets excluding the Project Assats as defined in the Coneession Agreemeni

(i) Al Tangible Assets of the Company not limited o Goodwill, wndectaking and unealled capital of the company.

{iv} Pledge of shares agpregating to 66.64% of the paid-up equiry capital of the Bormwer, Provided that any eforcement
of the pledge over shares shall be subject to prior approval of WEHAT 5 provided in the Concession Afreement

{9 A freat chinege by way of essigivment or creation on Security Interest on =

D Al cghes, dde, interest, bevelits, claims and demands of Indore Dewns Tollwags Limied undec project

documents subject ro the provisions of the Concession Agreoment.
2y Assiguuneat of dghes in favour of the lenders in aceordance with the substietion agraement in cespect of financing by

the senior lenders uadec the Anancing documents for the project.

3} Lenders fo be named a5 loss payees in the insuranee pokictes,
€) The dafe Restrucnsring docwments weee submitted to Natinnal Highways Anthority of lndia on 5th May, 2015foc
revicw, and also submitted the executed documents on 26th July, 2015 for approval o Nagoml Highways Authority of
India .

d) As per the temw of the sancion, the Tecrm Loan I of $40,00,00,000 i repayable within 26 equal instalments
irrediately from the nexe month of the disbursement. The towl amount of erm foan H disbursed was ¥ 31,12,00,000/ -
and the same has been fidlly repaid dudng the FY 2017-18.

) As per the terms of the Resttuctudng prckage, an amount of 23920 Crs were kept ag Dbt Service Resoeve Actount
with the Lead bank far the FY: 201415 to 2016-17. As pee the decision of ths consardem of Lenders and the Minutes of
the Meeting dated 19th May, 2017, the DSRA lying in the form of FDRs amounting to Rs. 39,20 es were redecmed
and the proceeds were udlitised for the prepayment of 25% of the Fuaded Interest Term propoctionaicly o the
Lenders along with the repayment of Term Loan II in full, 50 as to to reduce the interest burden on the SPY,
Hence the Interest and Principal payments for the FY 201718 & FY 2018-19 & Pactially for FY 2019-20 have been
serviced in advance by way of pre payment of FITL loan as per the repayment schedule | The Tépayment o actount of
Interest and Peincipal obligations to FITL accounr ks swrted in the FY 2019-2020 after the adjustment of the amounts

prepaid.

&} Terms of Repayment of Term Loans

1) The tenvc of the repayment of the Teem Loan - I for 7450,00,00,000 shall be for a pedod of 12 years (twelve) years
excluding 2.9 years of momtodum with 48 stuctueed unequal quarcteely Tnstalments rangiop from T 500,000 to ¥
78,66,00,000 pec annum as per the approved eestructuring package.,
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2) The wnor of the repayment of Funded Interest Teem Loan for $136,18,58,057 shall be for 2 pedod of 8 years years
excludiog 2.9 years of morasodum with 28 sructured unequal quagtedy instaimens wanging from ¥1,00,00,060 o
£38,80,00,000 per annum 25 per the approved resteugturing package.

£} The rate of Intecse paid w sl the Lendess is 10.10% per anoum

(E11) Reseructuring of Term Loan as per the BREE circular dated 7th June 2019,

{i} Duc eo Low Toll Collectinns and the deficit in the eash fdows, the STV is unable to servies even the iatecest obligatons
towneds the [enders in full. The account hars always been in SMAZ with all the Lenders.

(ii} The Techno Econormie Viabiliey Study (TEV) has been conducted by M/s Mott Macdonald & Forengic Audit has been
conducted by M/s Segar & Associates, Chamered Accountants. Both the repoets wees submitted to all the Lenders,
discussed in the consortivm meetings and the fnal reports bave been approved by all the Leaders vide consoctium meeting

deted 4th Oceober 2019,

(iii) All the Lenders vide consorituem mecting held dited 7th Feb 2020 fave decided appotnt credit raring apencies te
CRISIL & CARE to assess the sustadoble and vosustainable debt. Accosdingly CRISIL & CARE have issued the RBP4
Bating with Pagr A debir as R, 236 cesaustainable debt) & Pagt B Debtas Rs. 316 ges {Unsustainable debt) (out of Rs.597
ers toml debt as on Tss Oewober 2020) and the same has been submined o ol the Lenders.

(iv) Afrer receiving the RP4 cidngs from the o credis miing agencies, the company has requested the Lenders vide
tonsortiurn meetngs dared Yt Oct 2020, 14¢h December 2020 to take up the pronosal of the Resolution Plan with their
Compuorent Authodties ag per the RBI circular dated 7th June 2019, The Resolution Plan ks been, prepared based on the
rwo RP4 Batings issued by CRISHL & CARE.

(v} Punjab Matoml Bank bave catgorsed the account 25 Non Pecforming Assec {NEA) as on 31st January 2020, The
cecall latrer has been ceceived from PINE vide theic lotter dated dth Febroary 2020, Borrowings from PMNB have heen
sontinued to be eporied as Mon cureent a3 all the Leaders in the consocium meetig dated 14th Decomber 2020 agreed
to fike up the resolution peoposal with theis respective competent anthorities. As on 31st Macch 2021, none of the Lenders
have issued sanction letters for the Resoluton Plan.

{vi) Prurng the year the company bas clezred all the debt dues to all the Lenders upto Feb 2020 & avalled the momtodum
foc the payraent of the Taterest and Principal dues for the pedod Macch 2020 w August 2020, The company has also
cleared all the Interest & Principal dues to the Lenders for the months of Sepreanber 2020 to Decembear 2020 o all the
Lenders and has made partial pagments of intceest in the TL1 for the month of January 2021,

(vit) The morarorium for the payent of Intecest and Prineipal dues for the pered March 2020 o Auapust 2020 has been
implemented by $BI & UBT as on 315t Mareh 2021,

) Accordingly the Interest for the period March 2020 to August 2020 hos been shifted o the end of the repayment
schedulz and iy payable towacds the end of the loan teaure.

by The Principal cepayment for the qunrters Maxeh 2020 & June 2020 have been shifted w the end of the repRyrnent
schedule by UBI and has beca moved to the next quanaes by SBL

¢} PNB & ITFCE hag not implemented the morasorium 16 the account was Non Pectorming Asset (9PA) as on 31st
Jrnuacy 2020 & 3st December 2019 respectively.

IV) Repayment of Zero Interest Subordinate loan {Usnsecured loans from promoters) :
Subordinate debt will be repaid only afrec the payment of debt Obligatioas towards the Leaders

14 Other Non-Current financial Liabilities

Particulazsg As at As at
s March 3st, 2020 | March 3tat, 2020
Addiriond Concession Fees Payable to MHAL 4,71,66,86,111 4,27,81,73 344
[nterest on Additonal Concession Fees *¥ 3,04,45 850 304,45 850
Total 4,74,71,31,961 4,30,86,19,194
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Additional Concession Fees Payable to NHAT & Premium Deferment

The tonl premium smount payable as per the Concession Agreement, bas been capidized as “Ineangible Assets™ and
amoretized over a posdod of the service covcession Agroement a3 per the method proseribed in Pact A to the Schedule [ o |
the Companics Act, 2013 and coresponding Obligeton for commisted premiuvm has beeg recognised as liabilites
discounted value The Contractusi Obligation to pey premivm (Additonal Concezsion Fees) to Natdonal Highways Authodty
of lndia over the Coacession perdod has beea recopuized upfroat on Discounted basis (fair value) as per the Concession
Agreement and 52 pant of the “Incagible Assee * wad corresponding Obligation for committed premium payable to NHAT
i recogaized a3 labilittes, The velated Huance costs arsing on diseountng has been mken to the Profic apd foes necount.

Due 1o the low wll collscdong and debicit in the cash flows, thers has been 2 stess {n the account. The Nadonal Blighways
Authogty of India has approved the proposal for the defermens of precnivum paysble to them vide their sanction lecter dased
11th june, 2014. The preaium deferment sinction was given for = specific pedod as per the NHAT lettee. As pee the
sanction teoms, NHAT ceviews the Asnual accovats of the company every pean MNEAL has contended that there were
surplus cash flows in the certuin years and the same were t be be cemitted 1o NHAT which the compiiiy has communigated
chat it is a0 exvoncous contention. The same was not accepted by NEFIAL and the issue has gone into digpure. However
dusing the current year, the NHAL has cancelled the sanction of the premium deferrment vide i terter dated 6th August
2020 and has issued notice to die 8PV foe the paymens of the entire premium dug along with latecest from 2014 w the dawe
ot issuance of the letter, The SPV bag protested for the above and has replied suitably vide its letter dated 14th August 2020,
The tame und the matter s under arhirrarion with NHAL

Additional Concession fee hus to be paid o Matona! Highways Authosity of Indi as pet clause 26.2.1 of the Coucession
Agreement dared 17th May, 2010, Nadonal Highways Authorty of India has granted deferment of Addidonal concession
fees payable to them vide their sancdon lettor dared 11th June, 2014, lntecest on the Addional concession faes payable to
Matioaal Highways Authodity of ladia for the pedod 15t Apdl 2015 tw 31s¢ March 2021 has not been provided in the books
of accounts as e same has been deferced and also dus to the deficitin the cash flows.

Loty Term Provisions

Pacticulars Agar Az at
Mareh 3lae, 2L Mareh 3se, 2000
Provison for Employee bencfits
Provison for Graruity 22 09,659 19,706,706
Total 22,099,659 19,76,706
Ouher Financial Cureent liabilities
Particulncs LEF Ag ar
March 3lst, 2021 Murch 3st, 2020
Current Maturities of Long Teen Loans 43,58,43,000 29,44,60,000
Principal Repayment due as oa 35t Macch 14,42 05,000 2,45.01,000
Interest sceuted and due on borcowings 27.81,31,514 19,06,48,074
Payable to Refated Party
Retention Money 13,506,880 12,536,860
Opertion & Maintenance expenses 1,54,833,953 6,14,54,469
COS & Utlity expenses 19.97.033 5,40,526
Other Payables
Review & Inspection chagges payable to Lenders 50,54,884 10,77,596
Toll operation and management services 18,73,356 1,08,67,198
Creditors for Expenses ut site 1,74,358 853 70,65,808
Creditors for Expenses 2¢ HO 874,578 22.95,669
Total 90,42,94,052, 59,43,47.224
Short Tenn Provizions
Particutacs As at As at
March e, 2021 | March 31st, 2020
Provison for Employes benefits
Provision for Graridry - §T 1,600,437 91,076
Other Provisions
Provision for Site Expentes 2,01476 8.06,977
Total 3,01,913 9,98,053
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1 Qther Current linbilities

Particulars Asg at Agat
Mareh s, 2021 | Macch 3151, 2020
Statutory liabilities 5,87,650 15,587,703
Mobilization Advance for COS & Uriliry shifting
from MHAT 9,953,586 4,03 586
Totai ) 15,581,236 25,81,289
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19 Revenue From Operations
Particulars For the Yeac ended | TFor the Year ended |
March 3ist, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from Operations h
Revenue From Tolt Collections 75,38,60,692 64,14,92.966
Total 75,38,60,692 64,14,92,966 |

FY 2020-202L: 'Commencement of Toll collections from 20.04-2020 afrer the relaxation off
Lockdown :

Due to COVIDLY pandemic, there was a reduction in the wll collections from 23ed March 2020 due to the
Fpasition of Lockdown i the entite nation. There was a complete stoppage of toll collections for the
period 26th March 2020 to 19th Apnl 2020 and hence there were losses in the toll revenues. After the
relaxation of the Lockdown following the Government instructions, the toll collectons commeneed from,
20.04.2020 at 00:00 hrs with a very little traffic crossing our toll booths due to cermin restrictions on the
movement of goods and passenger vehicles resulting n mesgre collections. The toll collections were almost
less than 50% of what was expected. Letrers have been writtzn to NHAJ for the compensation of the toll
revenue loss for the period 26th March 2020 to 19tk Aprl 2020, However, NHAT has issued circulars that
no compensation will be provided, but the Concessionaire will be given the extension for the period for the

collection of toll.

However the toll collections resumed normaley from Mid May 2020 and the average toll collections per day
ir: the month of March 2021 are Rs. 24.23 lacs per day,

implementation of Mandatory FASTag for all the Vehicles and collection of Penalty from Cash
paying vehicles - Remittance of the excess/Penalty collected from the Uscrs of the MNonFASTag

effective 16th February 2021 to WHAT ;

(i) A circular was issued by NHAT which states that in accosdance with the second proviso of Sub nale &)}
of Rule 6 of the National Highways Fee (Determination of Kates and collecion) Rules 2008 all the Non
FASTag users enterng the FASTag lane have to pay the toll fees at 2x times the notmal rate (x amount),
This i in accordance with the decision of the Ministry thar all the lanes be made FASTag lanes effective
from 16th February 202]. Letters issued : (1) MORTH Letter No H-250610/02/2020 - Toll dated
16.02.2021; (2) NHAL/13013/347/CO/20-21 /FAS Tag /65290 dated 03.03.2021; (3)
NHAI/13013/547/CO/20-21/FASTag/65290 dated 08.03.2021.)

{if) The excess fees so collected ie., x amount (out of the 2x fees collected - over and above the normal
fees) be remitted to the central government in accordance with the sub sule (1) and sub rule (2) of the nule 7
of the National highways foe (Determination of rates and collection) rules, 2008 and tetms of the respective
concession agreement (Schedule R of the Concession Agteement).

(i) Accordingly an amount of Rs. 53,06,820/- being the penalty amount coblected {x amount) for the
pesiod 16th February 2021 to 315t March 2021 has been remitted to the PIU, NHAT on 15th April 2021 as
pex the crewlacs and letters issucd, The toll collections as cited in the above sehedule ie., Rs. 75,38,60,692/ .
axe pet of the payment of the x amount of penalty to NHAL
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20 Other Operating Income

Yor the Yeur ended

For the Year eaded

Particulars Match 31s¢, 2021 March 31, 2020
Change of Secope Receipt -NFAT 1,06,87,381 72,43,312
Utilities Shifting Receipts - -
Total 1,06,87,361 72,43,312
21 Other Income
Particul For the Year coded For the Year ended
aftcutars Mateh 3ist, 2021 March 31, 2020
Miscellaneous [ncome 1,20,17,824 1,72,625
Other Income 5,88 403 013,158
Total 1,26,06,227 10,85,783
22 Operating and Maintenance Expenses
Particul For the Year ended For the Year ended
arteniars March 31st, 2021 March 31, 2020
Repates & Maintenance 539,72 416 T,27.29,821
Change of scope works 1,15,34,403% 71,47,3291
Total 6,55,06,81) 7,98,77,212

Note of MMR : Damage caused to the road due the jncessant raing dudng the months of June 19 to Sep
19,

The damage caused to the highway is to be rectificd by commencing the major maintenance acrivity
immediately. The cost estimate of Rs. 7.11Ces has been worked owr for in-order to commence the repaty
works immediately and the same was certified by the Lenders Independent Engineer (LIE). The Major
Maintenance Repair works have been commenced. The bill for Rs. 2.57 crs has been rmised by the
Contractor for the year ended 315t March 2020 and has been accounted. Further a bill for Rs. 51.29 lacs has
been accounted in Septamber 2020 based on the work completed by the contractor, The claim with the
Insurance company for the damage caused to the road due to flood and Inundation has been lodged. The
clzim has been setded by the Insurance company for Rs. 1,19,98,855/- as full and final sertlement of the
claim on 16th December 2020.

Change of scope works (Hybeid ETC) : As per the accounting policy of the Company, the Hybrd
Electronic Toll Collection system Installation works which come under Change of Scope (COS) with
NHAI were accounted as and when the bills were certified by the technical team of NHAL However the
milestone 3 & 4 were accounted as on 31st March 2021 after the cordfication from the technical team zad
telease of funds from NHAIL The ladependent Engineer lug cectified the Milestone 3 paymerr, but NEAT
has now disputed for the payment of Milestone 3 and Milestone 4.

23 Employee Benefits Expense

Pardoulars For the Yeat ended For the Year ended
March 3st, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries & Wages 1,72,28.621 1,94,79.097
Staff welfare Expenses 2,68,294 3,406,224
Total 1,74,96,915 1,98,25,321

¥,
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24 Finance costs

25

26

Partculars

For the Year ended
Match 3lse, 2071

For the Year ended
Mauarch 31, 2020

March 3ist, 2021

Interest on Term Logns 60,18,66,237 59,20,94,736
Financial charges 91,19,547 58,04,559
Unwinding of Interest on Deferred Premium 43,85,12,768 39,87,32.154
Total 1,04,94,98 552 99 46,31,449
Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Particular For the Year ended Fox the Year ended
Arrenian March 31st, 2021 Macch 31, 2020
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 2,75.971 278,759
Arnortization on Intangible Asser 20,57,37,038 17,52,93,977
Total 20,60,13,000 17,55,72,136
Other Expenses
N For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars

Mazeh 31, 2020

Administrative Expenses 3593059 59,18,134
Electricity Charges 24,65,045 20,35,405
Audit expenses 5,23,920 4,77.800
Insurances 20,41,768 23,25929
Legal & Professional Charges 1.46.67 807 1,68,58,763
Other R&M Works . -

Period Rates & Taxes 742,681 2,02,204
Telephone & Internet 2,38,244 230,507
Toll Operation & Management Service 3,96,76,343 483,356,204
Travelling & Conveyance 2206958 27,05,555

Total

6,61,55,825

7,90,90,601
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Fait Values
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, tade receivables, curcent loans, trade payables and  ather current
liabilites approsimate their careping amounts largely due to the short-teem maturitics of these istaumnenes o as thesr carry macket

rate of interest,

Binancial Risk Management

The company's activities expose it to variery of financial risks : marker dsk, credit dsk and quidity dsk. The tompany's focus is
tr foresce the unpredictability of financial merkets and seek to minimize poteatial adverse effects on its finaneial pecformance,
The Board of Directors has overzll responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company's tisk  rnunagement
feamework. The Board of Thirectors hes established a sk management policy o ideatify and saalyze the dsks  facad by the
Company, to set approprate risk limits and controls, and to monitor dsks and adherence to limits. Risk OADAGEMER ] ysterns qre
teviewed periodically to refleer changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Bozrd of Dires ctors oversee
complisnee with the Company’s ask management policies end procedures, and reviews the dsk management frameverork,

Market risk

The marke: risk is the dsk that the faic value or futuee cash fows of 1 financial insteupnent will Aueruate because of thanges in
market prices. Market sk comprises three types of dsk: curcency sk, interest rate cisk and other price sk The Company's
achivitics expose it primadly 1o the finaneial dsks of changes in interest mtes,

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency dsk is the sk thae fius value or fature cash flows of a fnancis! instrument will fuctuzte because of changes in

foreign exchange e,
The company is not exposed to foceign cucreney gsk as it has no borrowing in foceign currency.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate dsk is the dsk that fir value or futbee cash flows of 2 financial insemment will fuctuate bocquss of thanges in

marker interest mies.

The Interest sk adses to the company mainly fom Long term bagowings with variable gates. The COMPAnY roesuces sk
through sensitivity soalysis.

Cuerenty, Lending by Comumercial Banks is at variable rate only, which is the inherear business dsk

The company is exposed to interest cate psk because it bocows fnds primarily at floating interest mates. However, the interast
rates are dependans on base rates/pome lending eates of the lead bank which are not expected 10 change very frequently 2nd the
estimate of the management is that these will pot have significant upward teead.

The company's exposute to interest race risk due to varable interest race borcowings is as follows:

Particulas: 3L03.2021 31.03.2020

Senior Debrt from Banks - Vaduble mte borcowings 563,235,958 469 | 5,69,85.31,048

Scnsitvity analysis based on average outstanding Senior Debyt

Impuct on profit/ loss after tax
FY 2020-2021 FY 2019.20

Interest Rute Risk Analysis

Increase or decerase o interest rate by 0.25 1,41,88,662 1,42,78,591

basis point

Note: Profit eill increase in case of decrease in inferest rate and vice versa

Price nsk

Price sk 15 the sk that the fair value or future cash fows of a financial instrament will fluctuate because of changes in madeet
prices {othet than those atsing from interest mte dsk or currency risk).

The company is exposed to price risk due to investments in mutual funds and classified 15 fir valae through profit and loss.

The company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.

The company’s risk management policy is to mitigate the dsk by investments in diversified mutual fonds.

The company does not expose to priee dsks as on 317 Mareh 2021,

¢
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)

Liquidity rigk

Laquidity risk is the risk that an entity will eocounter défficulty in meeting obligations associated with finaneial ale lices thar qee
settled by delivering cash or another financial assats.

The company is exposed to liquidity sisk due to bank borrowings and trade and other payables,

The company measures sk by focecasting ecash flows.

The Company's spproach to managing liquidity is to ensure, 2s far us possible, thar it will always bave sufficient ligw idity to meet
its liabilities when due without incucting unacceptable lnsses or dshing damage 1o the Company’s seputation, T he Company
engures that it has sufficient fund to meer expected opertionsl expenses, seevicing of Ganacial obligations.

The follerwing tables detail the company's remaining contractual manuety for its non-dedvative finaocial labilite s wigh agreed
repayment pedods. The tables have been drwn wp based on the undiscounted cash flows of Anancial liabilides based on the
eagliest date on which the company can be required w pay. The tables include both interest and poncipal cash Elows. To the
extent that interest flows ace floating rate, the ondiseounted amount is desived from interest rate curves 2t th ¢ end of the

reporting perod. The contractual maturity is based on the sardiest date on which the eomypany may be required to pex v,

The following are the contraciual maturities of Anancial labilities

Carrying
; f 21 b3 - - :
As at 31se March 20 Actiowunt upto 1 year 1-2years 2.5 years = B yoats
MNon Derivative Finaneial Liability
Tecmn Loan from Banks and Financial
Institution 5,65,23,98,469 1 1,05,51,61,267 | 2159978080 | 4,85,13,82,162 17,57 45,770
Dreferred Payment Linhiliey 471,66,80,131 12,20,00,000 54,89,00,000 | 3645262636 &G 0461 8,708
Other Cucrent Financlal Linbilities 32,4246 032 32,42 46,052
Orther Non Curgent Finanefal Liabilities 3,04,45,850 3,04,45,850
Derivative Financial Liability NIL NI NIL NI ~IL
Ag at 3lst March 2020 Carrying to 1 yes 1-2 2 - 5 years =3
a arch 202 Aiount upto 1 year - 2 years years years
MNon Derivative Financial Liability
Term Loan from Banks and Finencial
Lustitution 5,69.8531,048 | U2,62,66,124 | 20087,75,267 | 48435072261 1,0423.46.163
Deferred Payment Liabitity 4,27,81,73,344 1220000001 1230178803 ©,91,01,82,541
Orther Cucrent Financial Lizbilitdes 27,53,86,221 27.53,86,221
Other Non Cuarent Financial Liabilities 3,04,45,430 3,04,45 350
Derivative Finaneiu! Liability MNIELL NIL NIL MNIL MIL

Credit risk

Credit sk is the dsk that enc panty to 2 fnancial instument will cause a Bnancial loss for the ather party by failing to discharge

an obligation.

The company generally does not have rrade receivables as toll collections are n cash/bank and the occucance is 4% and when the
teafhic passes through wll - plazas. Hence, the rmanagement believes that the compaay is not exposed to any credie gl

9



INBORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED
Nares 10 Financial Srtements for the Year ended st March 2021
(Al amuant i pnloss ptherdsr wtaid)
27 Financia! Instrumcaota
Disctosure of Financial Instruments by Category

. As xn Slor Murch 2021 Aot e Muarch 2020
Firancial Iuscruments by caregones | Mot

e FVIPL FYTQCI Amortized cost FVTRL FVTOCT Amortzed eqgt
Financial neset ]
Investmgnts
Trade regeivahle
Cazh and Cuagh cguivalents LIZ 13,474 B4, 20,228
Oeher Bank Balance - -
Chther Financial Assets 10,588,233 ] 10,90,501
Total Financial Asset - - L,63,01, 707 - . 95,16,319
Finanecial Babilivy
oo Laan feom Banks and Frnaneral
tastinon 5,05,23,08,469 569,853,048
{efersed Paymene Labiliy 4,71,66,84,111 +27.81,73 344
Chbee Cuerent Finangial Liabilivies 324246052 27,53, 60,021
Cither Mon Corrent Financial Liabilities 344,45 850 304,43 BEO
Yotal Financial Linbititics - " 10,72,37,76 482 - - 10,28,35,36,462

Defaule and breaches
There are defaults with respect to payment of fntevest and Principat repayment abligadons wowards the Lenders ag pee the tble below,

Term Loan k

Particulars 0:::::;“‘2 Principal O/s | Mo of days deluy Du!::r::;:i‘ng Principal Q5 | No of days defay
fanks Financial fusiitcigns
Irtemst dhuers March 2020 1.30,85.54) 56,23,(8K) k114 8H,24,1455 A7.50G000 s
Ingerest dues upria April 2020 127756861 . kAl 80,5007 - 336
Inzeeest dues upae May 2020 [IRATIRAS] - s dnnnlls - ans
Interese dues upro June 2020 1,28, 30,508 75,00, (4K} 215 BH66,123 SO I 275
Interest dues upto fuly 2030 1,348,245 - 234 BY35607 -- 254
Enteccst dues upto August 2020 1,33,28,224 - n: 8,156,262 . 253
Inteeest dovst upte Septeember 2020 -
Interest dues upro Octaber 2020 -
[neeeest dues upto Movember 2020
Tnterest dues upto December 2020 - - -
nterust dues upto January 2021 ELR LR - filt
Errterest dies upto Febzupey 2021 262,260,293 . 32 HAHZ 3G . 1
Taceresr dues upo Masch 2021 3,15,07, 550 1,75.00,000 t 10T EIATY S nnnon i
Totat i3.034,1,123 3,06,25,000 7,18,65,007 1,37,58,000

Funded Inverest Teem Loan

Particulars O:::;:;f::i‘ug Principai @ /s | Mo of days delay Q::::::::ng Principat O7% | Mo of days delay

Banks Finpnginl Institu tions
Fnterese dues harch 2020 37,4629 o, TG 4K i) 2414057 60, 50000 66
[aterest dues wptno Aprit 2050 36,6993 . 3 23,59,669 . Ri7H
Tnterest dues wpto May 2020 M SRR - hItE] 24,58,500 - W5
Interest duss upto June 2020 IGRTEH 1,1, 52,054} 5 2301718 1,21 L0 75
Interest dugs upto July 2020 3700864 . 244 24,64,762 - 244
[ivterest dores bprbe Aggrusr 2020 EYEART] . pR) 34,31 05 - *a
Interost chues upto Seprendee 2020
Interest duesupeo Oerober 2020 -
[nterese dues upeo November 2020 - . . -
Interest dues upte Becember 2020 - . . -
Intesest dues upro fanuary 202t .69, 845 - Gl 23,03,710 . Gl
Interest dues upro February 2021 76,131,071 - R Hman : i
Interest dues upto hiarch 2001 05,723,377 423,57 0 t 22 54, 700 1,21 0 Lo} |
Towl 4,55,68,358 ,95,80,000 LA 8 | 3,02,50,000

=

+ | KYRERABAR | *
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)

Fair value of Fluaocial asses and liabiluies ar amartized cost

w As 2t 3ist Macch 2021 A3 at Jlut March 2020
Pasdiculers Maore Carrying
L smaunt Eaip value  !Carrying amount!  Faie value
Financinl Aszeta
Trade veceivable
Caaly aad eash aguivalencs 1,523,474 1,52,13,474 #4,26,228 84.26,228
Other bank balancs - - - -
Oycher financial asaees 10,588,235 10,88 253 10,850,591 10,90,501
Total Financiul Assews L6308, 107 1,63,01,707 953,16,619 93,16,819
Finaneixl Hability
Tezn Laza from Banks and Finaacial
Earsdhrution SESZI08469 ) 5.65,23,08,460]  seomnsn0dB]  Sevessross|
Teade Payables - -
Pelecred Paymenr Linbiliry 411,66 86,001 | 4.71,66R6,111 437873344 §  4.27,81,73,544
Oither Cucrene Flnancial Liabilites 32,42 46,052 12.42,46.052 27,53,86,2T1 27.53,86.221
Other Mon Currene Finencial Liabifites 3.04,45,830 304,45 850 304,45 850 3,04,45,850
Torel Finameit Lishftes 0723176482 ] 1073,37,76.482 | 10,2825,96,462 | 10,2825 36,252

The carcying amount of curreat Bnaneial assets and current ceade and ether payrbries measured 21 awordsed eost are considered o be thes same a3 their faie
values, due to their shoo tecon pature,

The curzying value of Rupee Term Loon is approximate Gic valus oz che insceumenes ace gt prevailing macket rate.
Significunt accounting judgments, estimates and assumpriony

The preparation of the Company's Arancial srtemenrs tequires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptios thar affecy phy ceported amonnts
of rvenues, expenses, xssers and Habilities and the accompanying diselosuces nnd the diselosuee of toatingent izbilittes, Uncerminty abio ur these assumipriong
dod extiznates enuld msult in ourcomes that require 3 maredal adjusrment 1o the carrying amount o e oe labilities affected in Futece pedods,

Estimates and asztenpions

The key nssemprons conceraing the Ruture aod other key sources of esdmation unecereainty a¢ the repoming dace, thar bave a significane debe of causing 1
material adjustment to the careying ameounts of assers wnd liabifites within the aest Hoascial year, are degeribed below, The Company Basad ite assumptions
dnd egtimates oo pacmetess available when the financidl stursments weer prepared. Existing ciecumstences snd assumptions about Sutue developments,
however, may change due o macksr chuoges or ciccumstances atisiog thae zre beyond the coael of the Company. Such changes 4ee reflected in the

assumprons when they peeur




INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED
MNotes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31s¢ March 2021

(ALl amounts in Tunkeas otherwisg smied)

32 Disclosures pucsuant to Ind AS 1- "Presentation of Financial Staterents”

33

a)

b)

it

&)

v

b)

For the purpose of the Compaay's capitsl management, eapital includes issued equity capital and all other B ULy reserves
atteibutable to the equity holders, The prmary abjective of the Company’s capitst management is to maximise thess sharehalder
value. The Company manages its capital stoscruee and makes adjustrments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
equicernents of the financial covenants. To mainedn or adjusc the capital stazctace, the Company may adjust  the dividend
payment to shaceholdecs, retwen capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital usEng a gearing
satio, which Is net debe divided by total capital.

Particulars As at3lat Morch 20211 As at 31st March 2020
Debts 3,93,05,29,983 5,88,93,79,122
Less: Cash and Bank Balances (1,52,13,474) {84,26,228)
Ner Debit (A) §,91,53,16,510 5,88,00,52,804
Equity & Orther equity (B) (2,92,16,83,614) (2,29,41,69,551)
MNet Debt / Total Capital (A/B) (2.02) (2.56)

Drebe includes Lagg term bomowings (including current matueities) and Interest acceued thercon and extouding defirred paymres pny Hability

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 113 - * Service Concession Asrangements”

Indore Dewas Tollways Limited is 2 Cpecial Purpose Vehicle {SPV) incocporared on 4- 05-2010 for executitn. of the project "
Six Laning of Indore-Dewas section of NH 3 from KM 577.550 o KM 610.00 and KM 0.000 e KM 17.600 {Aprprox, length
45.05 KM) in the stae of Madhya Pradesh under NHDP PhaserV to be evecured 25 BOT {Toll) project on D> esign, Build,
Finance, Operate and Transfer "DBFOT™ pattern, The compeny has enteced into = Concession Apreement wich National
Highways Authority of India, which specifies 2 two and half year of construction period and twenty two and haalf years of
operation & mainteaance period. The Company achieved the Provisional Completion Certificate we f 20th May, 2015

Sipnificant Term of the arcangements

Revision of Fees:

Fees shall be revised snnuaily an every Apal of the year as per Schedule R of the Concession Agreement dated 17th May,
2010.

Concession Fee & Additional Concession Fees:

As pex Article 26 of the Concession Agreement, the company is Esble to pay Concession Fee 1 every year. The company is
also liable of payment of Peemium $24.10 Crs on the appointed date and 5% incrense in ench year. ‘

Rights of the Cornpany for use Project Highway
To demand, collect and approprate, Fee from vehieles and person lable for payment of Fee for using the Project Fighway or
any part thereof and refuse entey of any vehicle if the Fee due is not paid.

Right of Way, access and licence to the Sire.

bligation of the Company

The company shail not assign, transfer or sublet oz create any licn or Encumbeanee on the CA or the Concession jranted or
on the whole or any part of the Project Highway noc transfer, lease of part possession thereof, save 2zod except as expressly
peemitted by CA or the Substinution Ageeernent.

The eompany is under obligation to carry out the routing and periodie maintenance of the Project Highway a4 pec Schedule K

of the CA.

Dretails of any asscts to be given or taken st the end of concession period
At the end of the Conesssion period the company shall deliver the zctual or constructive possession of the Project Highway,
free and clear of all encombrances

g2-
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MNoces to Financial Siatements for the Year ended 315t Macch 2021

(Ad menaunts in Tunless otherwizse aaed)
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vii
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35

35

Details of Termination

The Concession Agreement can be tenminated on aceount of defanke of the vormpany or NHAL in the cleow amstances as
specified under artiele 37 of the Concession Agreement, NHAT has issued @ letter daced 20th Nov 2026 for "I TENTION
TO TERMINATE" ¢iting vetious defaults such as delays in the completion of the punch list itoms, recovery of ameounts ynder
negative Change of Scope, Safety Issues celated to Opemtions & Maintenance of the carraigeway, Nou  payment of
Independent Engineer fees during constmuction perind; Payment of the deferred premium as per the review done by NHAT and
other project retated issucs. NHAL has also made counter elaims on the company amounting to Re. 556 exs .

The SPV bay protested the above and has submitted 2 letter dated 20d December 2020 stating that it will submede 4 conerere
proposal for the amicable sentlement of il the disputes with NHAT The SPV has submitied to NHAT & concrete proposal on

Teh Jamaary 2021 with e options
{u) Ficst being the Resolution Plan submitted to the Lenders which is pending approval by lenders and

(b) The amicable serdement of 2l disputes between the NHAT & the SPV and NHAL to make the seclement of the payments
due to the Lendees for a reasonable amounr.

Subsequently INFLAL has sought information of the debr due to the Leaders and other financial information which were
submitted vide letter dated 15th Junuaey 2021 and emails. NIAT has bssued lotier No NHAL/NHDP -V Ind-Deow
Tollway /201314 daved 19th Magch 2021 keeping on bold the Arbitmtion proceedings and the initiation of the CCXEE commite
for the amicahle setdement of ali disputes. Hence a5 on 31at March 2021, the weeminaton proceedings have not beren fssusd by
MNHAF oo the SPV and the SPV it 1 going concern.

NHAT vide its leties No NHAL/NHDP-V/Iad-Dew Toliway/2013-14 dated 25th May 2021 has concurred for the amicable
seitlement of all disputes between both the parties. Accordingly WHAI has constimted the Concllisdon CCammittee of

Independent Experts (CCIEY for the amicable settleqment of all the disputes.

Significant Changes in the teans of the Original Concession Agreement tll Jist March 2021

In view of the deficit in the cash Hows due to low roll collections and the noa completion of the adjoining stcevches of the
project hughway, NFEAT vide its letter dated 11th June 2014 has given in principle approval for the defecment of the premium
payment from Nov 2013 o the futuce years as per the schedule given in the sanction lerrer.

NHAL has issued letter dated 8th Aug 2020 withdeawing the promium deferment sanction of 1ith June 2014 and has
demanded for the payment of the fll premivm due for the peciod Nov 2013 o upto the date of issuance of the letter with
Interest. The 3PV has protested for the above and has replied suitably vide its letor dated 14th August 2028 and che macter is

now undar arbitration.

However now the above matter is undee the Coneiliation committes of Independent Experts (CCIE) committer vide NEIAT
letter No NMAL/NHDP-V/Ind-Dew Tollway/2013-14 dated 25th May 2021 for the arpicable settlement of a1l the issues

beovesn both the parties,

The Company does not have any transaction to which the provition of Indas-2 relating to Valuation of Inventories applies.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 - * Revenuc Recognition"

Amount of conteact revenuc recognised in the yea (COS & Utility Shifting) ¥ 1,28.96,905/- (PY: 72,43,312/ -}
Method nsed to recognise the constaictions revenue - Work excuted during the year and remaining to be execirted.

Change of scope works (Hybrid ETC) : Refer note 22 for denils on change of seope woks.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 - "Income tuxes™

The Company does not have taxable income and hence provision for cugrent tax bas not been made. The compaty is eligible
for deduction under section B0LA of Income Tax Act and the tax holiday petod of the company's project falls within the
concession period of the company as defined in Section B0IA. Since tax on Timing diffecence between Accounting Income and
Taxable Income that asise duting the year is reversing durdng such tax holiday pedod No deferred tax asset/ liability arises and

secordingly no provision is made in the aceounts.
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INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED
Notes to Finaucial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2021
[All armaunts in Tupless otherwvise stated)
37 Disclosure pursuant to Ind A% 19 "Employee benefits™:
Provision for Gratuity is made on actuarial basis at the end of the Finsnelal gear, The Company does not have aetay policy for

compensated Absences.

As at Ag at
Profit and Loss account for current period Jlst¢ Miar 2021 31st Mar 2020
Sesvice Cost
Current Service Cost 2,868,424 2,585,826
settlerment
Met bntersst eost 1,37.513 1,389,405
Totalincluded in 'Employee Benefit Expense’ 4,25.937 4.28.23]
Expenses deducted from the fund
Total Charge to Profit & Loss account #4,25,937 4,253,231
Other Comprehensive Income For the current period
Components of actuarizl gain/losses on obligations:
Due o change io financial assumptions 84,893 108214
Phte vo change in Demographic assumption {1,394
Dhoe to expencnce adjustments (87,651} (2.84.404) |
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income {2,758) {1,77,644)
|W Reconcilinton of defined obligation Yor the year ended
st Mar 2021 3lst Mar 2020
Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening defined benefic obligation 20,67,782 19,11,060
Service Cost 2,88 424 285,820
MNet interest expense 137,513 1,39.403
Commpenents of actuustxl gin/ossess oo obligadons
Due to change in financial assamptions 84,893 108,214
Due to chasnge in Demographic assuempon (1,394
Due to experience adjustments (87,651} (2,84,464)
Beneltes paid {90,865} {90,865}
Closing Defined Benefit obligation 24,00,096 20,67,782
Birfucarion of liabitity as per schedule 11T
Current Liability 1,00,437 91,076
MNon-azeene Habilivy 2299659 19,76,706
N . . Ag at
Principal Actuarial Assumptions POV Ny CTER
Discounting Rute G.35% 6.80%
Average Salary Growth Rate 4% 4%
Attrition Rave 3% atall ages 3 % atall ages
Sensitvity to key assumptions
Discount Rate Sensirivity
Inerease by 1% 219,202 19,05,587
(Yo change) -1.54% «1.84%
Drecrease by 1% 26,12,395 2257577
{Ve change) §.85% 9.18%
Salary Growth Rate Sensitivity
Increase by 1% 25,93.849 3241441
(% change) 807% B.40%
Drecrease by 1% 22,23.301 19,05,331
(% change) T37% -1.86%
t NS8O
&4
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Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) Sensitivity
W.R. up by 1% 214,158 252,773
{% change) 0.59% a1
WR. doven by 1% 23,853,403 20,52.1321
(¥ change) -0.61% 6%
Relared Party Transactions
A List of Related Parties

Compagy Nume Relation

M/s Gayatel Highways Limited

Company having significent influeace & Euterpdses

owned or

sigoificantly influenced by key mapagement pecsonn, el or theig

relatives

M/s Gayatc Projects Limited

Company having significant influence & FEnwrpdses

ownad og

significantly influenced by key mamagement pesonniel or their

refanives

/s Balaji Highways Holding Pyt Limired

Company having significant influence

B. Transactions with celated pacties:

Farticulars

Az at3lse March 2021 As at 3zt Marcch 2020

Reimburgement of expenses:
M/s Gayagel Infra Ventuces Limited
M/s Gayuirl Projeces Limited

Trangactions for EPC, utility works, Q&M and other
Miscellaneous Works:

M /s Gragatel Projects Limited

Payment of Retention Money:

5,73,48,462 T,44,48,240

M/s Gayatd Projects Limdred
Balances as af year end:
M5 Gayate Infea Ventures Limited
Shage Capiral
Eguiry Component Interest free Subordinate loan

Payables
M /s Gayatd Highways Limited
Share Capital
Equity Component Interest free Subordinate loan
Payables
M/s Gayatsi Projects Limivad
Share Capital (Pledged with Leaders of Notes 5.e.8)
Equity Companeat Intecest Free Subordinate loan
Receivables
Payables
Retention Moaey
Mobilizadon advance Diebic balance towards ETC, COS &
Eltilicy shiftiog
M/'s Balaji Highways Holding Pyt Limited

333,200
70,25,00,000

3,33,200
70,25,00,000

79,720,000
7.02,05,217
11,07,804

64, 53,500
24237101
11,007,804
9,93 584 993,584

1,646,600

Share Capital

1,66,600

* Transactions with Gayard Peojects Ltd focludes the bank guarantes charges ceimbursed to (GPL on account of the Bank Guaragsee

igsued to IDTL.

Sitting Fees to Ditectors Amrin Ra
Pucticularg For FY 2020-2621 Fur FY 2019-2020
Shai Hasi Vigtal Rao Independent Ditecior 59,000 53,100
Sho M V Narsimbha Rag Independent Digotor 59,000 53,100
Sha Kanshasmurthy Tadependent Pirecior 5,900 -
a8
o B3SO
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S
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Dsclogure pumuant to Ingd AS 23 "Borrpwing Costs"

Tarticulars As at3lst March As at 314t March
2021 2020
Finance Cost 1,04,94,98,352 99,46,3%,449
Eess : Capialized during the year - -
Finance Cost charged to Statement of Profit & Loss 1,04,94 98 552 59,46,31 449

Disclosure pursunat to Ind AS 33 "Humings per share”

Basic EPS amount are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year astsbutable o B

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dung the year,

Basie snd Diluted Barniags per share (EPS) computed in aceomdance with Tad A% 33 “Harpings per shase™.

quity holders of the Comupany by the

ey . L As at B 13t March

Particulars Unit A= at Flat March 2021 020
Eaxepdngs Per Equity Shace:
Loss atteibutable to equity holders of the Company Rupees (62,75,14,063) (€59,89,07.614)
Weighted sverage numbee of equity shases in caleularing Runees
basic EPES Hpees 50,000 50,000
INominal Value of BEquity Share Rupees 14 10
IEfgct of dilution:
i\.‘?.‘/’c:ightc:.c:l avewge aumnber of equity shares vsed in
computation of difuted EFES Rupess 50,600.00 50,000.00
Basic and Diluted Barninps (Loss) per share (£2,550.28) {13,97%.95)

41 Discloswres as per lnd A% 37 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingeut assety

a)

b}

Contingent Liabilities

Pacticulars

Az ac 3st March 2021

Ag ae 31at March 2020

Claims against the company not acknowledged as
debt

a) The IE & NHAY have issued cuce pedod notice to

same has to be paid to them out of the chims received
from MHAT as stated below.

the 5PV citing vadous defaulbes under vagious ehuses and 5,56.05.24,710 236,065,196
has issued dernand notice for Ry, 556 o

b} The BPC contractor has filed claims with the $PV

under various hesds amounting to Rs. 196.55 crs and the 1.96,55.41,206 1,96,55,41.206

Guaraniees
Orsher money for which the company i contingently

liahie

The company has prowsted against the caims made by the MHAL Thess have been made by NELAT 25 counter claims in liew of the elaims

filed by SP'V to MNEHAI emouating 0 Re. 1,070.96 ces for which Asbitrasion

disputed and are under acbitration.

Contingent Aszet

proceedings ace golng oo, All the claims made by NHAT are

The company has filed with NHAIT the finat statement of claim for aa amount of Rs.1,070.96 ers in the month of Augast 2020
under various heads The conalistion meetings with NHAT have failed and the Acbitcation proceedings have stared. As
NHAI and 3PV bave concuered 1o go for amicable scttlement of all disputes between both the pacties, the Arbitrazion
proceedings were stalied for 180 days ie, upto 6th Qciober 2021.(vide arbitrators letters dared Teh April 2021)
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42  Capital Commitment

43

44

45

16

el ‘ As at B Ter Mare
Particubars As at 31st March 2021 Cmoa reh
Estimated amount of contracts remuining to be executed on Capital Aeeount 7
not provided for -
Elncalled liability oo shazes and other investments partly paid . .
Other cormnitments
Total - - 7

* The above EPC works need not be carried out by the SPV as NEHAT has deleted the same Fepam the scope of worsks

Other Compitments:

As per Chwse 26,21 of the Concession Agreement eatered with Marioral Highways Authosity of India, the Companss has pay
Adkdirional Concession fee of T24,10,00,000 every year with escalation of 5% fixed pr from the FY 2011-12, However  the Natiogal
Flighways Authorty of India hay granted deferment for the peernium payable 1o then, As per the szoction de 1L.6.201<8 MNELAT has
reviewed the annual fnzocials from 2014 and has concluded that e suephus funds 2o 2vadable with the SPV aad the sames needs to be
eemitied to NEHAIL Thix is now disputed between the PV & NHAL MHAL vide its letter dated 6.8.2020 has cancelled ahe premivan
deferment facility 2ad hag demanded to pay the full premiom from Mov 2013 to the date of issunnce of the letrer.

FPayments to Auditor Amtin Rs
Particulars As at 31se March, As at 31se March,
2021 2020
{a) Statutory Audit Fee 2,600,000 2,00,000
(c) ICFR fees 50,000 50,000
{b) Tax Audil Fee 50,000
() Othee Sorvices (Opinion / Cectification Fees) 1,44,000 1,585,000
(4} Goods & Secvice Tax / Secvice Tax 58,520 72900
Total 4,52 520 527,900

There have been no claimed transzetions during the yeas with Miceo, Small and Medium Eaterprses covered under the Micro,
Small sad Medivm Enterprises Development (MSMED) Ace 2006.

Forcign Cuireoey Tranactions

(i) Bspenditure in Foweign Curreney {(Prevous Yeae Ni)
(i) CIF valuc of Import (Frevous Yene Nil)
(i) FOB value of Export {Prevous Year Nif)
(iv) Earmngs in Foreign Exchange (Prevous Yeqr Nil)
{(+) Remittance in Foreign Exchange (Prevons Ve Nil)

Prsclosure pursuant "Going Concern®

The Company operates in the infrastructure business sector which involves huge capital investments, The high gestation perod
cequired for break even for such infra structure investments is sufficienty sddressed due 10 the long concession Life of this
project. The balance concession pedod is 15.5 years. The company’s net worth has eroded paimacily due to high Amortisation,
high intezest on term loans and high premium and deferred premium liability. The Management expects that the Company’s
revenue for the subsequent financial years will be sufficient to meet the cxpenditure and recoup the losses incursed thereby
steengthening the financial position of the Company. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepaced on going
concern basis.
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‘The major reasons for the shorifall in revenue from toll are as follows:

1) The Overali Adverse Bconomic conditions in the Country and in the State of MP,

2) Lower industrial activity in the vicinity of the project asen, sesultiny in lower Heavy vehicle movernent.

3) The Stretch of Ghar — Dewss has been abandoaed by the IVRCL. Because of which, the teaffic coming from A\ hmedabad
has abandoned the Indore — Pewas Streteh, Consequently, the toll collectons have substzatially reduced — The temffie from the
west is cut off consequently resulting in fow toll revenues.

#) The Strerch of Gwalior — Shivpur — Dewas Highway is totally ditapidated with no maintenance, duc to which the entire
teafhic, which nomally passes through Shivapud ~ Guna - Shajapuc — Deswas, is now taking the alternate route rews ulting in
reduced traftic on the Tadore — Dewas Streteh. As NHAT has failed in the execution of the 2-4 laning road from Shivpur -
Dewas, which was awarded to GVI, the entire steetch of 467 Krns is in & dilupidated condition and not toad-worthy for heavy
vehicles. The traffic from the north is totslly cut off resulting in low toll revenaes.

B} At Awana Bridge (WH-3, Near GUNA) due 1o the middle span settlement teaffic on both sides was closed ic., From Delhi 1o

Mursbai and henee the Main traffic got diverted from our project road.
6) Ar NH-7 theoughout the road from Guaa o Dewws 40% of top surface { Bitumen Carmpel) wits damapged and esrery S0mies is
siddiced with pot holes (1 te 2 feet) and are throughout the road up to Guna, Which has resulted in divesion of tea fic away

from NH-3,
7) At Makshi Railway Gate, 2 low height basrier has recently been installed by the Railway Authorities. Due to this barder,

hieavy mmotor vehicles prefec to go by some other coute - resulting in sevenue logs.
B) Tue to toll rate variation between toll A and tolt B mast of the vehicies aon passing theough Toll B. Also the heavy vehicles

ace getting diverting to this road therely reducing the Toll Revenue.

Please sefer note no 47 below for the developments in the adjoleing steeeches

Disclogure pursuant to Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets”

Since the company expects sefficient cash inflows from the toll collections in Ffuture, impaiement in the value of the toll
colleetions rights is not envisgaged due to the below mentioned ceasons : .

Developments in the adjoining suweches ;

The Stretch of Gwalior ~ Shivpuri w Dewas Highway is oot being developed by 3 developers as below -

Stretch Developer Length e
o IRCOM Intemational Attained o 2018 (86.6
Shivpuri — Guna (EPC) (Km 236 to kn 332.10). Por Linsired 96 Kins e {
Guna - Biaoss (BOT) (Km 332,100 to Kim 426,100). Dilip Buildeon Linited 93.05 Kms Atiained in 2018
. . Cuirntal Structural et
Biaorx - Dewas (BOT) (Em 426,100 to Km 566.450), Engineers Pt Lid 141 Kms PCC aftained in 2149

The wosks in the above strechies have been 90% completed.

Fence due to the positive developments in the adjoising stretches as stated sbove, the ol s expected to incremse for the
coming years. Despite the COVIIMNG pandemic & Lockdown , the toll collections have seturned to nosmaley in the months of
May 2020 to Masch 2021 with average toll collections heing Rs 24.23 lacs per day.

Disclosure of segment information pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”

The Company is engaged in the business of eonstarction, operation and meintenance of Toll road projects on a Build Operare
Transfer basis in a single business segment. Hence reporting of operating segments does wot arise. The Company does pot have
opecations outside India. Hence, disclosure of geographical segment information does not acke.

Events after the reporting peried
There aze no significant events after the rrporting pediod that substantially affect the financial position of the company stated in
the Balance Sheet
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The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at present as on book closure date. Hemnee, it is not
possible to reliably estimate the ducation snd. severity of these consequences, as well s their fmpact on the Sne neial position
and results of the Company for futuce perods. However, the company i protected by the clauses 34 of thc Concession
Agreement to cliim such loss under force majeure event in the form of revenue logs compensaton by way of cla3ming the loss
of toll revenue from the NHAT or by way of extension of the concession pedod. Accasdingly, the financial positienn and pesules
of operations a5 of and fur the year ended 315t March 2021 have not been adjusted 1w reflect theic impact.

Ind AS 116 : The company has no transactions which atteacts disclosure of IndAS 116

‘Fhate were no litigation pending 2gainst the company which could be matedally impact its financial position #5 at the end of

the year.

Previous year companutives have been reclagsified and regronped wherever necessary, to confitn to current yeags’ Erresentation,

For and on behalf of the Board

For MEPS 8 Associates
Chartered Accountants

Figen's eegistmtion no. 3020145
}5 AR
s Madi /

T V Sindeép ac Reddy
Partner Dicestor
Membership Mo : 051361 Mt 513 Mo 00005573
Place: Hyderabad
Daare: 8th June 2021
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Form No MGT.11

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U45200TG2010PLC068238
Name of the company: Indore Dewas Tollways Limited

Registered office: 6-3-1090, T S R Towers, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500 082,
Telangana, India

Name of the Member(s):
Registered Address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/Client Id:

DP Id:

I/We being a member (s) of Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: , or failing him
2. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: , or failing him
3. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

, or failing him




as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 11" Annual
General Meeting of the company, to be held on Friday, the 24" Day of September, 2021 at
10.30 A.M at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 6-3-1090, T S R Towers, Raj
Bhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500 082, Telangana, India and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Balance sheet as at 31% March, 2021, Statement of
Profit and Loss for the period ended on 31% March, 2021 and reports of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. T.V. Sandeep Kumar Reddy, who retires by
rotation and is eligible for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

. TO APPOINT MR. KRISHNAMURTHY CHATURVEDI AS AN INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 161, 149, 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from
time to time, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
appoint Mr. Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi (DIN: 08661228), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013
and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence under
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is eligible for appointment and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director,
be and is hereby aﬁpointed as an Independent Director of the Company, for a period of 5
years i.e., from 29" January, 2021 and he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Directors of the Company be and are hereby

authorized to file Form DIR-12 with the Registrar of Companies and to do all necessary
acts and deeds as may be required for giving effect to the above resolution”.

Signed this




Signature of shareholder Please Affix

Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave ‘for’, ‘against’ or ‘abstain’
column blank against any or all of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote
in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate.




INDORE DEWAS TOLLWAYS LIMITED
Regd. office: 6-3-1090, T S R Towers, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500 082, Telangana, India
CIN: U45200TG2010PLC068238
ATTENDANCE SLIP

11" Annual General Meeting held on 24" day of September, 2021 at Hyderabad

Regd. Folio No. *DP ID:
No. of Equity Shares * Client 1D
held

Name of the Shareholder

Name of Proxy

I/We hereby record my / our presence at the 11" Annual General Meeting of the members of the
Company held on Friday, the 24" Day of September, 2021 at 10.30 A.M at the Registered Office of
the Company situated at 6-3-1090, T S R Towers, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad -
500 082, Telangana, India.

SIGNATURE OF THE MEMBER OR THE PROXY ATTENDING THE MEETING

If Member, please sign here if proxy, please sign here

Note: This form should be signed and handed over at the Meeting Venue.
* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.




